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IN THIS REPORT

The term ‘FBN Holdings Plc’ or the ‘Group’ means FBNHoldings together 
with its subsidiaries. FBN Holdings Plc is a financial holding company 
incorporated in Nigeria on 14 October 2010. The Company was listed on 
the Nigerian Stock Exchange under the ‘Other financial services’ sector 
on 26 November 2012 and has issued and fully paid-up share capital as 
35,895,292,792 ordinary shares of 50 kobo each (N17,947,646,396). 
In this report the abbreviations ‘Nmn’, ‘Nbn’ and ‘Ntn’ represent millions, 
billions and trillions of naira respectively. 

FBN Holdings Plc is structured along the following business groups, 
namely: Commercial Banking, Merchant Banking and Asset Management, 
Insurance and others1.

� The Commercial Banking business comprises First Bank of Nigeria 
Limited, FBNBank (UK) Limited, FBNBank DRC Limited, FBNBank 
Ghana Limited, FBNBank The Gambia Limited, FBNBank Guinea 
Limited, FBNBank Sierra Leone Limited, FBNBank Senegal Limited, 
First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited and FBN Mortgages Limited2, 
First Bank of Nigeria Limited is the lead entity of the Commercial 
Banking business. 

�  The Merchant Banking and Asset Management business consists of 
FBN Merchant Bank Limited and FBN Capital Limited. Subsidiaries of 
FBN Capital Limited include FBN Trustees Limited, FBN Capital Asset 
Management Limited, FBN Funds Limited FBN Securities Limited 
and FBN Capital Partners Limited. 

 
�  The Insurance business comprises FBN Insurance Limited, FBN 

General Insurance Limited and FBN Insurance Brokers Limited. 
 
�  Others: previously ‘Other Financial Services’, comprise, FBN Holdings 

Plc – the parent company and Rainbow Town Development Limited.  

1 Previously ‘Other Financial Services’ comprise, FBN Holdings Plc - the parent company and Rainbow 

Town Development Limited, which has now been classified as a discontinued operation. 

2 FBN Mortgages Limited, now classified as a discontinued operation following the resolution of the 
Board of First Bank of Nigeria Limited to divest.

This report encompasses FBN General Insurance Limited. Unless otherwise 
stated, the profit or loss statement analysis compares the 12 months 
to December 2016 to the corresponding 12 months of 2015, and the 
financial position comparison relates to the corresponding position at 31 
December 2015. Unless otherwise stated, all disclosed figures relate to 
continuing operations. Relevant terms that are used in this document 
but are not defined under applicable regulatory guidance or International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) are explained in the glossary or 
abbreviation section of this report. This report is also available online at 
insuranceinfo@fbninsurance.com.

Shareholders will receive a compact disc (CD) containing the Annual 
Report and Accounts for FBN Holdings Plc, as well as information on 
outstanding dividend claims and a list of all our business locations. There 
will be an option to view a navigable PDF copy of the FBNHoldings report 
as well as PDFs of certain subsidiary reports at the download centre of 
the Investor Relations section of the FBNHoldings website. A CD will be 
available on request by contacting FBN Holdings Plc Investor Relations 
department, Samuel Asabia House, 35 Marina Street, Lagos. 
.
Due to rounding, numbers presented throughout the report may not add 
up precisely to the totals provided and percentages may not precisely 
reflect the absolute figures.
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OVERVIEW
FBN General Insurance Limited is a Limited Liability Company licensed to transact General Insurance 
businesses in Nigeria. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of FBNInsurance Limited and provides 
coverage to both individuals and corporate clients. 

FBN HOLDINGS PLC (FBNHOLDINGS)

FBN Insurance Limited

� FBN General Insurance Limited

FBN Insurance Brokers Limited

INSURANCE

COMMERCIAL BANKING

First Bank of Nigeria Limited

� FBNBank (UK) Limited

� FBNBank DRC Limited

� FBNBank Ghana Limited

� FBNBank The Gambia Limited

� FBNBank Guinea Limited

� FBNBank Sierra Leone Limited

� FBNBank Senegal Limited 

� First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited

� FBN Mortgages Limited2

MERCHANT BANKING AND
ASSET MANAGEMENT

FBN Merchant Bank Limited

FBN Capital Limited

� FBN Trustees Limited

� FBN Capital Asset Management Limited

� FBN Funds Limited

� FBN Securities Limited

� FBN Capital Partners Limited

The products offered by the Company help customers enjoy the 
peace of mind that comes from managing the risks of everyday 
life. With us, customers can protect what matters to them. 
One of our primary objectives is to help people, businesses 
and communities get back on their feet when the unexpected 
happens. It is therefore our responsibility to make sure that we 
are there for our customers both today and in the future. 

The owner Company, FBN Insurance Limited, is jointly owned by 
FBN Holdings Plc and the Sanlam Group. The Company therefore 
draws from the technical experience and wealth of knowledge of 
its owners which will aid the Company to play a significant role in 
the development of the insurance industry in Nigeria. To achieve 
this, we are anchoring our operations on product innovation, 
efficient service delivery and prompt claims settlement.

Our registered head office is situated at 298, Ikorodu, Anthony, 
Lagos, while we operate in Seven branches that are strategically 
located across the country. In line with the vision of our owners, 
we are poised to be Nigeria’s first choice in wealth creation and 
financial security. 

FBN General Insurance offers a wide range of non-life products 
and services that cater for the needs of both the corporate and 
retail segments of the insurance market.

Our products help customers enjoy life with peace by managing 
the risks associated with their everyday living. With FBN General 
Insurance, they are able to protect their choice assets and the 
people who are most important to them. 

Our primary objective is to help people, businesses and 
communities get back on their feet when the unexpected 
happens.

As a non-life insurance Company, offering a range of products, 
all our operations are anchored on innovation, efficient service 
delivery and high standards of professionalism.
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VISION, MISSION AND VALUES

OUR VISION

To be Nigeria’s first choice in wealth creation and financial security.

OUR MISSION

Providing the Nigerian insurance market with best-in-class, 
innovative and solution-driven products and services that create 
value for all stakeholders, whilst consistently demonstrating 
integrity, professionalism and confidence.

OUR CORE VALUES

Quality Service

In every aspect of our business, excellence is our benchmark. So, 
whether our customers interact with our people, processes or 
products, they are sure to have an experience that is truly pleasing 
and rewarding. Only the best will do.

Respect for Individual

We understand that our customers are more than just facts and 
figures of our business. We appreciate that they have concerns, 
challenges, hopes and aspirations. That’s why we greatly esteem 
and value them. And that’s why we show each of our customers a 
heartfelt concern and empathy that is uncommon in our industry. 
The customer is King.

Integrity

We believe that trust is an invaluable asset in our line of work. 
Hence, we ensure that in all our dealings; in every contract we 
have with our customers, in our relationships with all other 
stakeholders and in all our processes, our character is never called 
into question.

Our word is our bond. 

Innovation

We are committed to the continuous offering of modern and 
relevant products and services which meet the yearnings and 
expectations of our customers. We are always forward thinking.

Professionalism

We have a crop of highly qualified and dedicated professionals 
with enviable antecedents and ample experience in their respective 
backgrounds. Together, we all work passionately to ensure optimal 
results for all our stakeholders and the Company as a whole. We 
take our work seriously.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

It is my pleasure to welcome you to the Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) of our Company, FBN 
General Insurance Limited and to present the Annual 
Report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Global Economy

The year 2016 saw the growth outlook strengthened in the United 
States. Although performances remained mixed in the developed 
economies, with the Brexit vote in the United Kingdom was a 
major source of concern, initial worries at the beginning of the 
year over a possible slowdown in China appeared overdone, as the 
authorities were able to sustain growth at projected levels through 
higher spending outlays. A stronger dollar supported rising exports 
in Japan, even as concerns persist over the long-term effects of 
an ageing population. Growth signs were evident in the euro area 
as were new price pressures, despite idiosyncratic worries around 
its peripheral economies. Consequently, the IMF estimates output 
growth for advanced economies in 2017 is 1.9% from the 1.6% 
attained in the previous year.

Emerging Markets and Developing Economies (EMDEs) were 
supported by stronger commodity prices, including the late bounce 
in crude oil prices following the production agreements reached 
between the Organisation for Petroleum Exporting Countries 
(OPEC) and a few oil producing non-cartel members. Accordingly, 
the IMF still puts growth in this group of countries at 4.1% as 
recorded in 2015. Nonetheless, tighter monetary conditions, 
especially in the United States, threatened a reversal of inflows into 

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

“

”
Olugbenga Shobo, Chairman

... we made 
commendable progress 
in the implementation of 
our strategic objectives, 
putting us on the path to 
sustainable growth.

EMDEs towards the end of the year, a process which was further 
compounded following uncertainties related to the outcome of the 
US presidential elections in November.

Domestic Economy

The main pass-through to the domestic economy from a soft 
global output performance was via oil prices, whose subdued levels 
resulted in a shrinkage in government spend last year. Furthermore, 
decline in the country’s major export commodities coupled with 
increased restiveness in the oil-rich Niger Delta region led to shut-
ins, production losses, and lower oil prices; hence, a reduction in 
consumer spending, dwindling trends in business investment, and 
a negative net exports position.

The economic implications of government’s fraught fiscal position 
continued to exert downward pressure on the Naira, inducing a 
spike in the trajectory of domestic prices, as imported inflation 
took its toll. At 18.55% in December 2016, headline inflation was 
considerably up on the 9.55% at which it closed in December 
2015. More so, at 13.9% in the third quarter of last year, 
unemployment rate continued to pose myriads of concerns. 
Invariably, the economy contracted in each of the four quarters of 
last year, resulting in the IMF estimating growth at -1.5% for 2016

The liberalisation of the interbank foreign exchange market, 
originally intended to have helped moderate demand pressure 
on the Naira, eventually underperformed. Arguably, given the 
magnitude, and length of its support for domestic growth, concerns 
emerged over the continued utility of monetary policy as a driver 
of the economy. Delay in the passage of 2016 appropriation bill, 
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however, challenged the objective assessment of the government’s 
targeted spending programmes on domestic output

Despite the effects of these headwinds, we made commendable 
progress in the implementation of our strategic objectives, putting 
us on the path to sustainable growth. Our business, for the most 
part, recorded an improvement in top-line performance relative to 
the prior year as highlighted in the following financial review.

Financial Highlights

Our Gross Premium Written (GPW) grew by 21% from N1.81bn 
recorded in 2015 to N2.19bn achieved at the end of the 2016 
financial year. This improvement was due to the increasing level 
of confidence reposed in us by our customers and our sustained 
commitment to improved service delivery.

Our optimisation approach to business operations also helped 
in achieving a profit before tax (PBT) performance of N195m. 
Although this represents a 17% decline in comparison with the 
corresponding period in 2015, an increase in reinsurance costs and 
an upsurge in claims paid were the major causes of the reduction.

Still, we maintained an improvement in our balance sheet as total 
assets increased by 14% from N5.33bn to N6.06bn while total 
equity also grew by 4% from N3.97bn to N4.10bn. Our return on 
equity (RoE) stood at 4% while we achieved 2% as the returns 
on assets (RoA).

Conclusion

Improvements in key macroeconomic fundamentals in the near-to 
medium-term, especially, oil price outlook, along with the prompt 
passage of the 2017 appropriation bill strengthen our projections 
for both the economy and our operating environment this year.

We remain resolute in the face of the uncertainties and challenges 
as we seek to continually deploy best business practices towards 
increasing the value of our enterprise and generating optimal 
returns for our shareholders. We shall also continue to deepen our 
market footing, focusing on improving our financial and operational 
efficiency as well as strengthening our synergy with other operating 
entities within the Group.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I hereby acknowledge the 
commitment and passion of our staff in the discharge of their 
duties. They have continued to ensure improved service delivery 
and remained steadfast in delivering the intended results.

I thank all our customers and partners for the assurance reposed 
in us all through the year. We look forward to your continued 
support and patronage in the coming year.

To our shareholders, I thank you for the trust and confidence 
reposed in us. We assure you of our commitment and solicit for 
more of your supports in the coming year.

Olugbenga Shobo
Chairman

Chairman’s statement
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Hendrik Nel  
Non-Executive Director

Tunde Mimiko
Executive Director, Operations

(Appointed w.e.f. April 3, 2017) 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

LEADERSHIP AND GOVERNANCE

Olugbenga Shobo  
Board Chairman

Bode Opadokun  
Managing Director

Valentine Ojumah  
Non-Executive Director

Johan Schalkwyk  
Non-Executive Director

Titilayo Adebiyi 
Independent Non-Executive 

Director

Yusufu Modibbo
Independent Non-Executive 

Director

Ayokunle Ayoko
Company Secretary
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Leadership and governance

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Olabode Opadokun  
Managing Director/CEO

Modupe Akinwande  
Head, Finance

Tunde Mimiko
Executive Director, Operations

(Appointed w.e.f. April 3, 2017) 

Shola Osho  
Group Head, 

Business Development

Pauline Indonima Ogebe 
Head, Legal Services and 

Compliance

Jacqueline Agweh
Head, Claims/Reinsurance

Ndubuisi Emmanuel Alu  
Head, Underwriting

Tokunbo Makinde  
Head, Human Resources and 

Administration
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MD/CEO’S  REVIEW

DISTINGUISHED SHAREHOLDERS,

It is a great pleasure to present to you the financial 
results of FBN General Insurance Limited for the 
year ended 31 December 2016.

2016 in retrospect

The Nigerian economy witnessed various dimensions of socio-
economic, political and business upheavals, slowing to a fresh trough 
in 2016. Output was quite weak in most sectors of the economy as 
the prevailing macroeconomic headwinds remained persistent.

The domestic downward trends which began in 2015 continued 
all through the year as key macroeconomic parameters weakened. 
The global oil dynamics within the period, evidenced by the decline 
in crude oil prices, posed severe growth risks to an oil-dependent 
economy like Nigeria. Also, oil production volumes came under intense 
pressure following the disruptions in the Niger Delta, which triggered 
a decline in government revenue. Inflation jumped to double digits 
from 9.7% as at December 2015 to 18.6% in December 2016 as 
a resultant effect of weaker exchange rate, increase in fuel prices 
due to price adjustments and a hike in electricity tariffs pressured 
by domestic price levels.

The weak fiscal and monetary approach to the marked deceleration 
adversely impacted investor confidence. High public sector debts 
also continued to put pressure on domestic interest rates which 
further spurred a severe capacity shock on key economic sectors, 
such as manufacturing, agriculture, etc.

Moreover, the sharp reduction in government expenditures, dwindling 
external reserves, foreign exchange restrictions and declining 
consumer purchasing power further impaired the aura of uncertainty. 
Thus, the economy recorded a contraction of - 2.24% third quarter 
2016 in its GDP output. These downward trends significantly posed 
myriads of challenges to business growth.

In the midst of the slowing trends, however, we remained resilient in 
achieving our outlined objectives. This can only be attributed to our 
commitment to continuous operational and process improvement, 
as well as the enduring supports and patronage of our esteemed 
customers and other stakeholders.

Industry review

The insurance industry witnessed an increasing upturn in regulatory 
oversight as competitiveness among players heightened. Falling oil 
prices also put increasing pressure on government revenues with 
negative implications on both capital and recurrent expenditures, 
which altered premium projections from public sector insurances.

Following weaker consumer purchasing power, the demand for 
insurance services slightly nose-dived as consumers’ expenditure 
patterns shifted towards essential commodities with less 
consideration for the purchase of insurance services while the 
market remained soft with pricings and cut-throat competition.

NAICOM, in its own respect, continued to fulfill its obligations 
of enforcing minimum operational standards for the conduct of 
insurance business in Nigeria and protecting customers through its 
regular industry reviews and updates. Moreover, there are on-going 
considerations to introduce Risk-Based Capital (RBC) framework 
which is geared towards deepening the capital adequacy of the 
industry operators.

“

”

We will continue to 
focus on creating a 
first-class customer 
experience with 
expanded multi-channel 
platforms and improved 
product offerings.

Bode Opadokun, Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer
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Business review

The Management embarked upon a review of operations and 
manpower resources with a view to optimising available operational 
capacities and unlocking the potentials of our people towards 
ensuring operational excellence and fostering sustainable growth.

This follows the imperatives of ensuring that operational excellence 
serves as a major competitive differentiator in our growth aspirations 
and more importantly, a sustainable and profitable entity, creating 
values for our stakeholders.

In addition, the review was further necessitated by the critical need 
to strengthen our market position alongside relevance of our value 
propositions, given the evolving trends and the anticipated changes 
in the operating environment.

Financial review

We recorded a Gross Premium Written (GPW) of N2.19bn which 
represents a 21% growth rate from the corresponding performance 
in 2015 while a Profit Before Tax (PBT) of N195m was achieved, 
although, a decline of 17% was recorded. This can be attributed to 
an increase in reinsurance costs which rose by 15.7% in 2016.

Notable performances were also recorded in the GPW by product 
classes. Bond and Marine recorded significant GPW growth rates of 
198% and 104%, respectively in comparison with the corresponding 
period in 2015. Similarly, Engineering, Fire, Oil and Gas and Motor 
classes experienced upward swings in growth, amounting to 56%, 
48%, 29% and 6%, respectively. Only General Accident class 
recorded a GPW decline of 9%.

Though, the Net Operating Income grew by 12.6%, our Underwriting 
Income, however, recorded a decline of 2.2%. Our Investment 
income, on the other hand, recorded a significant growth rate of 
43%, thus, reflecting our optimised approach to asset management.

Performance ratios

The year was closed with an underwriting expense ratio of 35% 
from 34% recorded in 2015. This follows an increase in acquisition 
expenses and maintenance costs. Similarly, the net claims ratio stood 
at 25%, recording a 5% increase from 2015 performance. This 
was largely driven by Engineering and Motor classes; although, our 
reinsurance arrangements accommodated significant proportions of 
all reported claims within the period.

Our operating expense ratio rose to 43% as against 38% in the 
corresponding period in 2015 while the combined ratio increased to 
60.5% from the 51.9%.

It is important to note that we are improving our product distribution 
approach and deepening our business channels as we optimise our 
operational capacities and technical expertise while leveraging on 
existing group synergies to drive sustainable growth.

Looking ahead

Inspired by the vision of our owners and our aspiration to become a 
leading general insurance company in Nigeria, we have developed a 
number of strategic initiatives and ambitious targets for the medium 
and long-term.

We will continue to be focused on creating a first-class customer 
experience with expanded multi-channel platforms and improved 
product offerings. In achieving these, we are re-tooling our 
operations through improved leverage of technology and innovation 
as well as investing in manpower development in order to be more 
equipped and efficient in delivering the promised value.

Conclusion

I sincerely thank the Board, Management and Staff for their support 
throughout the year. While we seek your continuous commitment, we 
assure you of our dedication to achieving our overarching objectives 
of creating value for our shareholders and esteemed customers, 
especially the Brokers and other clients.

Thank you.

Bode Opadokun
Managing Director/CEO

Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer’s review
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY
OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Our business is designed to promote operational and service excellence across all touch points. We create value for our customers and key 
stakeholders through key customer segments and distribution channels as shown in the diagram below: 

STRATEGY

Over the past three years (2014 – 2016), our strategic focus 
was centred on deepening our footprint within the corporate non-
life insurance market while steadily expanding the frontier of the 
huge and under-tapped retail non-life insurance opportunities in 
Nigeria. This is against the background of the current low insurance 
penetration rate at less than 0.8% considering the available 
opportunities. 

As a result, we recorded significant performance improvement at the 
top-line and appreciable bottom-line returns to our shareholders. 
These can be attributed to the improvement in value proposition, 
optimised risk practices and enhanced client engagement approach.
Within the next planning horizon (2017-19), our strategic focus 
is hinged on further deepening of footprints in the corporate 
insurance space with increased share of wallets and scale-up of our 
burgeoning retail agency. Specifically, in 2017, we will deploy the 
following strategic initiatives:

� Scale-up of retail agency and productivity;

� Grow broker and direct corporate channels through 
differentiated strategies;

2016 KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPIs)

KPIs 2014 2015 2016

GPW (N’billion) 1.70 1.81 2.19
PBT  (N’billion) 0.27 0.23 0.19
Net claims ratio 17% 18% 25%
Expense ratio 14% 17% 17%
ROE (post-tax) 5% 5% 4%
ROA (post-tax) 3% 4% 2%

Customers

Agency
Distribution

Motor
Marine
Bond

Engineering
Fire 

General Accident
Oil and Gas

Underwriting

Claims

Customer 
Service

Brokers
Distribution

Alternative
Distribution

Corporate

Individual
(Retail)

Channels
What we do

Key stakeholders

Shareholders

Employees

Communities

Government

� Enhance operational efficiency and effectiveness across key 
process points; and

� Optimise technology for superior service delivery to customers.

We are committed to delivering value in line with the expectations 
of our stakeholders as we strive to achieve our earmarked strategic 
objectives, taking advantage of emerging opportunities in the 
insurance market.
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Visit to Down Syndrome Foundation.

RELATIONSHIPS AND RESPONSIBILITY
At FBN General Insurance, we understand the place of solid relationships in every business transaction. This is 
why we commit ample resources towards ensuring a mutually beneficial relationship with the society at large. 
This is displayed in the way we work, our values and our corporate responsibility and sustainability strategies.

OUR CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY AND 
SUSTAINABILITY (CR&S) APPROACH
For us, insurance is a service that is premised on trust. By aligning 
our corporate responsibility and sustainability strategy with the 
FBNHoldings Group Strategy, we are able to build trust, brand and 
reputation through effective stakeholder engagement and thought 
leadership on CR&S. The FBNHoldings Group Strategy rides on the 
following strategic pillars:

1. Sustainable insurance
In designing our products and selling our services, we put 
sustainable insurance into consideration. Sustainable insurance 
is a strategic approach where all activities in the value chain 
including interactions with stakeholders and customers are done 
in a responsible and forward looking way by identifying, assessing, 
managing and monitoring risks associated with environmental, social 
and governance issues.

2. People empowerment
Our workforce is our most cherished asset. We remain committed 
to nurturing a most efficient, ethical and responsible staff that 
is constantly motivated, trained and re-trained for personal and 
organisational growth. In association with our parent company, 
FBNInsurance and partners, Sanlam Group SA, we are able to 
keep our workforce up-to-date with global trends in the insurance 
industry.

3. Community support
We constantly draw ideas and opinions from our host communities 
and act on same by designing products and services that suit their 
needs. We appreciate their hospitality by investing time, effort and 
our funds in projects that will make life better for everyone in the 
community.

4. Environmental sustainability
In doing business, we take cognisance of potential environmental 
risks with a view to nipping them in the bud. This is done via constant 
interactions with our stakeholders, driving sustainable insurance 
and putting necessary frameworks in place towards ensuring that 
our actions as a corporate entity do not impact negatively on our 
environment. 

MAIN CR&S ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR 2016

1. Breast and Cervical Cancer screening (In 
collaboration with Rotary Club)

It is said that breast and cervical cancer are the most common types 
of cancer affecting women in Nigeria. According to recent findings 
of the International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC), striking 
patterns of cancer in women highlights that priority should be given 

to cancer prevention and control measures regarding breast and 
cervical cancer globally.

As with the different types of cancer, successful treatment of breast 
and cervical cancer is linked to early detection. This is why we joined 
our sister company, FBNInsurance, in line with FBNHoldings strategic 
pillar on corporate responsibility and sustainability (community 
support), to partner with the Rotary Club of Omole Golden Lagos, to 
fund the breast and cervical screening/vaccination exercise for 500 
school girls and market women in select locations of the metropolis. 
The exercise was held at the premises of Ifako Ijaiye Health Centre, 
Ogba, Lagos. 

Presentation of cheque to  the leadership of Rotary Club of Omole Golden in support of the 
Breast and Cervical cancer screening exercise.

2. 2016 staff gift drive
The FBNInsurance and General Insurance Staff Gift drive is an in-
house scheme that encourages members of staff of both companies 
to donate various items to a common cause. Every yuletide, 
members of staff contribute several items including toys, food 
items, groceries, clothing, etc. these items are donated to a pre-
identified charity organisation or home. In 2016, we donated food 
items, toys, beverages and cash to the Down Syndrome Foundation.
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LEADERSHIP
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Olugbenga Shobo 
Board Chairman

Gbenga Shobo is the Chairman of the Board of FBN General 
Insurance Limited. He is the Deputy Managing Director of First Bank 
of Nigeria Limited and joined the Board of the Bank in 2012. Prior to 
his appointment as Deputy Managing Director, he was the Executive 
Director overseeing the Retail Banking/Public Sector businesses 
in the Lagos and West directorate and was hitherto the Executive 
Director overseeing the Retail Business in the South directorate.

Gbenga began his professional career with Coopers & Lybrand 
Chartered Accountants as an External Auditor and Tax Consultant. 
Over the course of his outstanding career, he became the Divisional 
Head, Corporate Banking Division of MBC International Bank Limited 
and subsequently, the General Manager, Corporate/Commercial 
Banking of FBN (Merchant Bankers) Limited before joining the 
Bank. At FirstBank, he has served in senior management roles at 
various times as the General Manager, Products and Channels 
Group; Business Development Manager in charge of Rivers and 
Bayelsa States; and also held the position of Group Head, National 
Corporates.  

Gbenga has over 30 years’ work experience from reputable 
organisations out of which he has garnered more than 26 years 
in the banking industry in Credit and Relationship Management; 
Products Development and Improvement; Treasury; Product Sales 
and Banking Operations, amongst others. 

He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria 
(ICAN) and an alumnus of Kellogg School of Management and 
Harvard Business School. Gbenga also holds a B.Sc. degree in Political 
Science from the University of Ife. In addition, he has taken various 
courses and attended various programmes in top-rated business 
schools including The Wharton School (University of Pennsylvania) 
and Stanford University. 

Gbenga is the first person to be appointed to the position of Deputy 
Managing Director of FirstBank in the Bank’s over 120 years history, 
a testament to his total commitment and professionalism. He is 
happily married with children and enjoys reading, playing golf and 
lawn tennis.

Bode Opadokun
Managing Director/CEO

Bode Opadokun is a consummate financial services professional with 
over 27 years’ experience spanning underwriting, risk assessment, 
operations and marketing in the insurance sector. He started his 
career with the defunct Trans Nigeria Assurance Co. Ltd before 
moving to Cornerstone Nigeria Plc. as one of its pioneer staff in 
1991. He rose through the ranks at Cornerstone Insurance to the 
position of Manager before leaving to join the newly-formed First 
Chartered Insurance Co. Ltd. as Assistant Vice President. 

As a pioneer management staff at First Chartered, he was involved 
in formulating policies and strategies required to keep the newly 
acquired company in business. After two years, he joined Consolidated 
Risks Insurers Ltd. as Deputy General Manager, Operations, where he 
was responsible for the smooth running of both the technical and 
marketing departments of the company. Following the successful 
consolidation of the company, he was promoted as General Manager 
of the re-branded company, Consolidated Hallmark Insurance Ltd. 

Prior to joining FBN General Insurance, he oversaw the smooth 
operation of 36 branches of Nigeria Agricultural Insurance 
Corporation as the MD/CEO. It is to his credit that the corporation’s 
loss position was overturned within the first year of his stewardship. 

Bode holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration (MBA) 
from the Delta State University, Abraka and is an Associate of the 
Chartered Insurance Institute, UK. An alumnus of the prestigious 
Lagos Business School, he is also both a Fellow and a member 
of the Governing Council of the Chartered Insurance Institute of 
Nigeria (CIIN).

Tunde Mimiko, Executive Director, Operations

Tunde is a seasoned professional in the Financial Services sector 
with over 18 years of experience spanning banking and insurance. He 
has been involved in business and product development, strategic 
planning, relationship management, financial and cost analysis, as 
well as business process management.

Prior to joining FBN General Insurance as Executive Director, 
Operations, Tunde was actively involved in the transition of Union 
Assurance to Ensure Insurance Plc, having served as the Managing 
Director/CEO. More so, he worked as a Management Executive at 
WAPIC Insurance Plc and ARM Life Plc. He also had a stint at the 
defunct Intercontinental Bank Plc (now Access Bank Plc), as well as 
First Chartered Insurance Company Limited.

He is a Fellow of the Chartered Insurance Institute of Nigeria (FCIIN) 
and an alumnus of the prestigious Pan Atlantic University (Lagos 
Business School). He also holds an MBA in Financial Management 
from the Lagos State University.

Valentine Ojumah
Non-Executive Director

Valentine Ojumah is a resourceful management executive with more 
than 30 years’ experience in risk management, insurance broking, 
consultancy and training within the Insurance Industry, Academics 
and Research. He is currently the Managing Director/Chief Executive 
Officer of FBNInsurance Limited and previously worked as a lecturer 
at the University of Lagos, as well as head of various departments 
within the broking firm of Insurance Brokers of Nigeria (IBN) Ltd. 
As the CEO of First Bank Insurance Brokers Ltd, Val demonstrated 
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multi-disciplinary experience in all classes of insurance, risk 
management and loss adjusting.

Val has a first degree in Insurance from University of Lagos, M.Sc. 
(Business) from University of Wisconsin-Madison and is an Associate 
Member of the Chartered Insurance Institutes both in Nigeria and 
the United Kingdom.

Hendrik Nel
Non-Executive Director

Hendrik Nel is the Chief Financial Officer at Sanlam. Hendrik is 
responsible for the finance function of the Group, including financial 
reporting, corporate finance, investments, tax, internal audit, 
enterprise risk management, sustainability and corporate legal 
services. He also holds directorships of Centriq Insurance Group of 
Companies, Emerald Risk Transfer, Stalker Hutchison Admiral, MiWay 
Group of Companies, Censeo, Risk or Underwriting Managers and 
Sanlam Emerging Markets.

He joined Sanlam in September 2012. He was previously Head of the 
PricewaterhouseCoopers Financial Services Practice in Cape Town, 
South Africa.

He was recently appointed as a Non-Executive Director to represent 
Sanlam Group, South Africa, on the Board of FBNInsurance Limited.

Johan Schalkwyk 
Non-Executive Director

Johan Schalkwyk is a skilled Financial Services Professional with over 
13 years’ experience. He spent 8 years at Sanlam Life (South Africa) 
across various departments including claims and underwriting, 
marketing and information technology. He then proceeded to NICO 
Life (Malawi) as Chief Operating Officer where he pioneered the 
launch of micro insurance initiatives with mobile network operators 
and microfinance banks prior to joining FBNInsurance Limited as the 
Chief Operating Officer.

Johan holds a Bachelor’s degree in Strategic Management and is a 
member of the Chartered Insurance Institute of Nigeria.

Titilayo Adebiyi
Independent Non-Executive Director

Titilayo Adebiyi is a passionate and focused Business Administrator 
with over 26 years’, all-round experience in commercial bank branch 
operations and relationship management.

After two stints at PZ Industries and the former National Bank of 
Nigeria, she joined the defunct Habib Nigeria Bank where she spent 
the bulk of her professional career garnering valuable experience 
in various departments before she left to set up Avit Trust and 
Investment Limited, an investment company that caters to diverse 
range of clientele across multiple sectors of the economy. She 
also sat on the Board of SIGMA Pensions (a licensed Pension Fund 
Administration Company) for about 10 years until she retired in 
2015.

A school administrator of repute, Titilayo holds a Master’s degree 
in Business Administration (MBA) from the Lagos Business School. 
She was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of FBN 
General Insurance Ltd in 2016.  

Yusufu Modibbo
Independent Non-Executive Director

Yusufu Modibbo is a versatile Finance professional with experience 
across Banking and Finance, and Stockbroking.

After his first degree in Agriculture from the University of Maiduguri, 
where he also started his career, he joined Nigerian Agricultural and 
Cooperative Bank Limited in 1984 as Assistant Manager in charge 
of Projects and Operations, Makurdi branch. From there, he was 
appointed Manager, International Operations, Credit and Marketing 
and Corporate Development, New Africa Merchant Bank Limited, 
Lagos. Over the next couple of years, he joined Allied Bank of Nigeria 
as Senior Manager, Corporate Finance; Stanbic Merchant Bank 
(Nig.) Limited as AGM, Northern Area Office before he became the 
Managing Director of Tiddo Securities Limited in 2001. He ran the 
business for 11 years before joining Stanbic IBTC Bank as General 
Manager, Investment Banking, Public Sector and Non-Interest 
Banking in April, 2012.

Yusufu has been a Board/Council member of numerous professional 
bodies including Central Securities Clearing System Ltd, Chartered 
Institute of Stockbrokers, Abuja Securities and Commodity Exchange 
Plc., Investment and Securities Tribunal and the Nigerian Stock 
Exchange amongst others.

He holds a Master’s degree in Banking and Finance (FinAfrica 
Foundation, Italy), as well as a Master’s degree in Business 
Administration (Bayero University, Kano). He is also an Associate 
Member, Institute of Management Consultants, Nigeria Institute of 
Management and a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Stockbrokers. 
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The FBN General Insurance Management team is 
made up of seasoned, diligent practitioners. They 
are professionals who are backed with several years 
of experience from various sectors of the Nigerian 
economy including the financial services sector.

Bode Opadokun, Managing Director/CEO

Bode is a consummate financial services professional with over 
25 years of experience spanning underwriting, risk assessment, 
operations and marketing in the insurance sector.

Prior to joining FBN General Insurance Limited, he was the Managing 
Director/CEO of Nigeria Agricultural Insurance Corporation (NAIC). 
Within his first year of stewardship there, his astute business acumen 
helped the company successfully overturn its loss position.

He holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration (MBA) 
from the Delta State University, Abraka and is an Associate of the 
Chartered Insurance Institute (ACII), UK. He is an alumnus of the 
prestigious Lagos Business School (LBS), and also a Fellow and 
a member of the Governing Council of the Chartered Insurance 
Institute of Nigeria (CIIN).

Tunde Mimiko, Executive Director, Operations

Tunde is a seasoned professional in the Financial Services sector 
with over 18 years of experience spanning banking and insurance. He 
has been involved in business and product development, strategic 
planning, relationship management, financial and cost analysis, as 
well as business process management.

Prior to joining FBN General Insurance as Executive Director, 
Operations, Tunde was actively involved in the transition of Union 
Assurance to Ensure Insurance Plc, having served as the Managing 
Director/CEO. More so, he worked as a Management Executive at 
WAPIC Insurance Plc and ARM Life Plc. He also had a stint at the 
defunct Intercontinental Bank Plc (now Access Bank Plc), as well as 
First Chartered Insurance Company Limited.

He is a Fellow of the Chartered Insurance Institute of Nigeria (FCIIN) 
and an alumnus of the prestigious Pan Atlantic University (Lagos 
Business School). He also holds an MBA in Financial Management 
from the Lagos State University.

Shola Osho, Group Head, Business Development

Shola is a consummate marketer and insurance professional with 
over 21 years’ experience in the insurance industry. She holds a BA 
(Hons) degree in English Language from the University of Abuja and 
also bagged a Master’s degree in Public Administration (MPA) from 
Delta State University, Abraka in 2005. In 2010, she attended the 
Senior Management Programme (SMP 39) of the prestigious Lagos 

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Business School. She started her career in insurance at Lion of Africa 
Insurance Limited before joining Consolidated Hallmark Insurance 
Plc where she spent close to 10 years and rose to become the Head, 
Lagos Island Group. In 2013, she berthed at FBNInsurance Limited 
from where she was seconded to FBN General Insurance Limited, 
formerly Oasis Insurance, as the Head of Business Development 
immediately the Company was acquired. In her new role, she has 
distinguished herself as a marketer par excellence and under her 
watch as Head of Business Development, the loss position of the 
acquired Oasis Insurance Plc was overturned to profit in the first 
year. A member of Ikoyi Club 1938 and Rotary Club of Gbagada, she 
is happily married with children.

Jacqueline Agweh, Head, Claims/Reinsurance

Jacqueline is a Fellow of the Chartered Insurance Institute of 
Nigeria (CIIN). A Claims and Reinsurance Manager with over 20 
years’ experience in the field, she is an Insurance graduate of the 
prestigious University of Lagos and her career spans insurance 
brokering, underwriting, claims administration (Life and General) and 
reinsurance. She started her career with African Prudential Insurance 
Company Limited as a life insurance officer and has worked with 
Metropolitan General Insurance Limited as an underwriter, Picadilly 
Insurance Limited (Zenith General Insurance Limited), ACEN 
Insurance Co. Limited, KELSAN Insurance Brokers Limited, Oasis 
Insurance Plc and FBNInsurance Limited as a Life Claims Manager. 
She is a dedicated member of the Professional Insurance Ladies 
Association (PILA) and an award-winning fiction writer.

Modupe Akinwande, Head, Finance

Modupe is a result-driven, self-motivated and resourceful finance 
professional with over 14 years’ experience across various functions 
within the financial services industry covering banking, aviation 
and insurance. She holds a bachelor’s degree in Management and 
Accounting and a Master’s degree in Business Administration, both 
from Obafemi Awolowo University, Ile- Ife, Osun State. An Associate 
Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria 
(ICAN), she also has a Diploma in International Financial Reporting 
Standard (Dip. IFR; ACCA). Prior to joining FBN General Insurance 
in 2015, she was Head of Finance and Accounts at Custodian and 
Allied Insurance Limited.

Pauline Indonima Ogebe, Head, Legal Services and Compliance

Pauline is a legal practitioner with 13 years of significant experience 
in commercial law practice. Prior to joining the Company, she 
worked with some of the best law firms in the country including 
Olaniwun Ajayi LP, Nigeria’s leading law firm proficient in corporate 
and commercial law, where she got stellar work experience and 
advised clients on a broad range of corporate and commercial 
matters. Since joining the Company, she has established a reputation 
as a widely exposed counsel with multifaceted competencies.
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She possesses considerable experience in company secretarial 
practice, compliance and corporate commercial law practice 
particularly corporate finance, corporate restructuring, mergers 
and acquisitions and insurance law. A member of the Nigerian Bar 
Association, she graduated with Honors in Law from Ahmadu Bello 
University, Zaria and the Nigerian Law School.

Ndubuisi Emmanuel Alu, Head, Underwriting

Ndubuisi graduated from the University of Nigeria, Nsukka with 
a combined Bachelor’s degree in Sociology and Philosophy. He is 
an Associate of the Chartered Insurance Institute of Nigeria and 
has extensive experience in Insurance Underwriting, Claims and 
Reinsurance. He made his incursion into insurance in 2007 after 
working in Information Technology. He started with the Special Risks 
and Energy desk, and in the course of his career, has traversed 
all the divisions of the technical department. He has attended a 
number of Technical and Management programmes including Treaty 
Negotiations at Swiss Re Zurich, Switzerland in 2013 while he was 
Head, Reinsurance, KBL Insurance Limited where he spent seven 
years. He worked briefly at SANTAM South Africa on a business 
specialist programme in 2015. Ndubuisi joined FBN General Insurance 
in February 2014 and presently heads the Underwriting Unit.

Tokunbo Makinde,  Head, Human Resources and Administration

Tokunbo is responsible for coordinating the Human Resources and 
Administrative Departments of FBN General Insurance Limited. She 
is a professional with extensive experience in Human Resources 
Management within the Nigerian financial services sector.

She started her career with Skye Bank plc in 2008, as a strategic 
business partner in recruitment and learning and development before 
she moved on to Page Microfinance Bank as the pioneer Head of 
Human Resources. After few years at Page Microfinance Bank, she 
joined FBNInsurance Limited as the Performance Manager and was 
responsible for the alignment of performance management activities 
and the organisation’s corporate goals. She was later seconded to 
FBN General Insurance Limited in 2016.  

Tokunbo is a pioneer, first class graduate of the department of 
Sociology, Covenant University, Ogun State. She holds a Master’s 
degree in Management from Nottingham Trent University, United 
Kingdom and is an affiliate member of the Chartered Institute of 
Personnel and Development UK (CIPD); a member of the Certified 
Balance Score Card Professional (BSCI), United States of America 
amongst other professional bodies. 
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The Company recognises the pre-eminent place of good corporate governance structure and practices to the 
sustainability and profitability of an organisation. With the aim of enhancing shareholder value and delivering 
efficient and effective services to our customers and community at large, the Company has instituted a 
corporate governance structure that would enable it achieve the desired objectives.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has developed corporate policies and standards to 
encourage good and transparent corporate governance framework 
to avoid potential conflicts of interest between all stakeholders 
whilst promoting ethical business practices.

The activities of the Company are at all times conducted with high 
standards of professionalism, accountability and integrity, with due 
regard to the genuine interests of all our stakeholders. This is the 
foundation of our history, values and culture as a Company for 
building and sustaining an endurable institution that guarantees 
profitability and professionalism whilst enhancing shareholders’ value.

A key governance development during the period under review is 
the strengthening of Board Committees in compliance with the 
Code of Corporate Governance of National Insurance Commission 
(NAICOM) and good corporate governance with a defined charter 
on their functions, composition, structure and duties. The purpose of 
this is to ensure an effective Board accountable to its stakeholders.

FBN General Insurance Limited is committed to the continuous 
management of its business operations by identifying and 
implementing key governance indicators which aid sustainable 
development and guarantee shareholder excellent return on 
investment.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

This is composed of the Board and the Board Committees. 

The Board

The Company’s Board comprises seven members led by a Chairman 
who is a Non-Executive Director, one Executive Director who is the 
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, two foreign Directors 
and three other Nigerian Non-Executive Directors. The Board has the 
overall responsibility to strategically guide the Company and ensure 
its effective management. The Board discharges its duties through 
a number of standing committees whose charters are reviewed 
regularly. The charters define the purposes of the committees, their 
compositions, frequency of meetings, responsibilities and duties, as 
well as expected reports to the Board.

Members of the Board are as follows: 
     
Olugbenga Shobo  Chairman 
Bode Opadokun   Managing Director/CEO
Valentine Ojumah  Non-Executive Director 
Hendrik Nel  Non-Executive Director
Johan Schalkwyk  Non-Executive Director
Titilayo Adebiyi  Independent Non-Executive Director
Yusufu Modibbo  Independent Non-Executive Director
Tunde Mimiko  Executive Director

The Chairman of the Board

The Chairman has the responsibility to lead and manage the Board 
to ensure that it operates effectively and fully discharges all its legal 
and regulatory responsibilities whilst promoting effective relationship 
and open communication within the boardroom.
   
The Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is charged with the strategic 
and supervisory role over all core operations of the Company 
which involves risk management, formulation of policies and the 
implementation of operational decisions. The CEO is the first line of 
reference for issues to be discussed at the Board and is charged with 
ensuring compliance with regulations and policies of both the Board 
and Regulatory Authorities.

Board meetings

The Board of Directors’ meetings are held every quarter or as the 
need arises to consider the Financial Statement of the company 
for the period, review of management accounts for the quarter, 
consider the reports and minutes of board committees and any 
other reports pertaining to issues within the purview of the Board’s 
responsibilities.
   
Board committees

The Board discharges its responsibilities through the different 
committees and is regularly informed about the work of the 
committees by their respective chairpersons.
   
The Board has three committees, namely:

� Audit, Compliance and Risk Management Committee,

� Establishment and Governance Committee, and

� Finance, Investment and General Purpose Committee
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The committees make recommendations to the Board, which retains 
responsibility for final decision-making.

All committees report to the Board and as such must conform to 
the regulations laid down by the Board, with well-defined terms 
of reference contained in the charter of each committee. The 
committees render reports to the Board at the Board’s quarterly 
meetings.

A summary of the functions of each committee is stated below:
   
Audit, Compliance and Risk Committee 

The Board Audit, Compliance and Risk Committee provides 
oversight responsibility for the audit, regulatory, compliance and 
risk functions of the Company. The committee also discusses the 
quarterly compliance reports and takes delivery of the audit reports 
and other reports and statements by the external auditors. The 
committee monitors the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
control system, risk management system, compliance system and 
internal audit system. The committee recommends the appointment 
of external auditors and monitors its independence and quality, and 
reviews the external auditor’s fee arrangements.
  
Establishment and Governance Committee

The Board Establishment and Governance Committee advises the 
Board on its oversight responsibilities in relation to recruitment, 
compensation and benefits, promotions and disciplinary issues 

affecting senior officers of the Company on manager grade and 
above. The committee has the responsibility to review and approve 
proposals from the Executive Committee for recruitment, promotion 
and termination of senior officers on Assistant General Manager 
(AGM) grade and above and also review and approve disciplinary 
actions proposed by the Board to be carried out against senior 
officers on manager grade and above. 

Finance, Investment and General Purpose Committee

The Board Finance, Investment and General Purpose Committee 
monitors and reviews the Company investment policies. It ensures 
at all times that the Company’s investment policies reflect the 
objectives of safety and maintenance of fair returns on investments. 
The committee equally establishes standards, rules and guidelines 
for the Company’s investment management operations while 
also reviewing the Company’s investment strategy with a view to 
sustaining medium- to long-term competitive edge. The value of 
the Company’s market-to-market portfolios is also evaluated by 
this committee 

Committees’ composition

The composition of the Board committees and attendance at 
meetings during the year end are as follows: 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS

     No. of 
    meetings
Name  Composition  attended 5-Feb 12-May 12-Aug 5-Dec

Adenrele Kehinde (Resigned w.e.f 18 March 2016) Chairperson  1 1 0 0 0

Valentine Ojumah    Member  4 1 1 1 1

Aderemi Ogunmefun (Resigned w.e.f. 18 March 2016) Member  1 1 0 0 0

Hendrik Nel  Member  4 1 1 1 1

Caleb Yaro (Resigned w.e.f 18 March 2016) Member  1 1 0 0 0

Margaret Dawes  (Resigned w.e.f 18 March 2016) Member  1 1 0 0 0

Olugbenga Shobo (Appointed w.e.f 21 March 2016) Chairman  2 0 0 1 1

Bode Opadokun (Appointed w.e.f 1 May 2016) Managing Director 2 0 0 1 1

Johan Schalkwyk (Appointed w.e.f 12 August 2016) Member  2 0 0 1 1

Titilayo Adebiyi (Appointed w.e.f 12 August 2016) Member  2 0 0 1 1

Yusufu Modibbo (Appointed w.e.f 2 October 2016) Member  1 0 0 0 1
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AUDIT, COMPLIANCE AND RISK COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

     No. of 
    meetings
Directors  Composition  attended 4-Feb 11-May 12-Aug 5-Dec

Caleb Yaro (Resigned w.e.f 18 March 2016) Chairman  1 1 0 0 0

Yusufu Modibbo (Appointed w.e.f 2 October 2016) Chairman  1 0 0 0 1

Margaret Dawes (Resigned w.e.f 18 March 2016) Member  1 1 0 0 0

Valentine Ojumah Member  4 1 1 1 1

Hendrik Nel  Member  4 1 1 1 1

Johan Schalkwyk (Appointed w.e.f 12 August 2016) Member  2 0 0 1 1

ESTABLISHMENT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

     No. of 
    meetings
Name  Composition  attended 4-Feb 11-May 12-Aug 5-Dec

Margaret Dawes  (Resigned w.e.f 18 March 2016) Chairperson  1 1 0 0 0

Hendrick Nel  Chairman  4 1 1 1 1

Caleb Yaro (Resigned w.e.f 18 March 2016) Member  1 1 0 0 0

Valentine Ojumah Member  4 1 1 1 1

Aderemi Ogunmefun (Resigned w.e.f. 18 March 2016) Member  1 1 0 0 0

Johan Schalkwyk (Appointed w.e.f 12 August 2016)       Member  2 0 0 1 1

Titi Adebiyi (Appointed w.e.f 12 August 2016) Member  2 0 0 1 1

FINANCE, INVESTMENT AND GENERAL PURPOSE COMMITTEE 

     No. of 
    meetings
Name  Composition  attended 4-Feb 11-May 12-Aug 5-Dec

Aderemi Ogunmefun  (Resigned w.e.f. 18 March 2016) Chairman  1 1 0 0 0

Titi Adebiyi (Appointed w.e.f 12 August 2016) Chairman  2 0 0 1 1

Valentine Ojumah Member  4 1 1 1 1

Caleb Yaro (Resigned w.e.f 18 March 2016) Member  1 1 0 0 0

Hendrik Nel  Member  4 1 1 1 1

Yusufu Modibbo (Appointed w.e.f 2 October 2016)     Member  1 0 0 0 1

Bode Opadokun (Appointed w.e.f 1 May 2016) Member  2 0 0 1 1
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Executive Management Committee

The Executive Management Committee (EXCO) is charged with day-
to-day supervisory functions over the operations of the Company 
and reviews and makes reports of the monthly activities of the 
Company to the Board. It is usually the first line of referral forum 
for issues to be discussed at the Board.

Whistleblowing procedure

The whistleblowing process involves steps that should be taken by 
the whistleblower in reporting a reportable misconduct, and steps 
required for the investigation of the reported misconduct.

The Company has a policy that encourages staff and other relevant 
stakeholders to report perceived unethical or illegal conduct of 
employees, management, directors and other stakeholders to 
appropriate authorities in a confidential manner without any fear 
of harassment, intimidation, victimisation or reprisal of anyone for 
raising concern(s) under this policy.

The Board of Directors and Management is committed towards 
promoting a culture of openness, accountability and integrity, and 
will not tolerate any harassment, victimisation or discrimination of 
the whistleblower provided such disclosure is made in good faith with 
reasonable belief that what is being reported is fact. The Company 
has dedicated email address and telephone numbers through which 
staffs are encouraged to raise any concern or unethical conduct.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Operating environment

The operating environment in 2016  was shaped by a combination 
of domestic and external conditions. The global economy was 
characterised by uncertainty in commodity prices, rising energy 
cost, as well as performance of financial markets of the developed 
countries. The new global political stances appear to favour 
protection of national interest as against globalisation anchored on 
multilateral and free trade arrangements. The British pull out of 
the European Union (common market) and the recent change in 
political leadership of the United States of America point towards 
protectionism and bilateral trade arrangements. On the domestic 
front, the economy continues to grapple with contracting national 
output (recession), rising inflation, persistent decline in oil prices 
and depreciation of the national currency. These factors affected 
Nigeria’s economic and productive activities resulting in weak 
performance of the national budget in 2016.

In Nigeria insurance industry, the ensuing low economic activities 
during the year contributed to slow growth in premium income 
because most of the major corporate clients resorted to premium 
scheduling to comply with the “no premium no cover” rule. The 
insurance regulatory environment was stable with emphasis on risk 
management, capital adequacy and protection of consumers. We 
expect the introduction of risk based supervision by NAICOM to 
shape the competitive landscape of the industry in the coming year.
  
Nature of business

We are a Financial Service Company; a non-life insurer, supported by 
a team of experienced professionals and risk management specialists 
who design bespoke solutions that cater for the versatility of our 
client individual needs. Our services include:

� Motor insurance 

� Marine insurance

� Fire

� General accident

� Oil and gas

� Bond

� Engineering

Our commitment to our customers is to establish A-rated service 
delivery, thereby building a stronger, sustainable business, which 
makes a positive contribution to the society, and for which our 
people are proud to work. We have made concerted effort to put 
the customer first in everything we do. We will continue to deepen 
our understanding of our customer’s needs and accordingly improve 

the product offering, the customer experience and the channels 
through which they are served.

To ensure that we provide value to shareholders and customers, 
we will continue to drive high performance in our businesses by 
delivering profitable growth and operational efficiency, and by 
optimising risk and return.

Business overview

The economic recession backed by dwindled fortunes of crude oil 
revenue, occasioned mainly by the continuous attacks on oil facilities 
in the Niger Delta characterised the year. Reduction in government 
spending coupled with failure to liberalise foreign exchange system 
equally affected our business.

In 2016, FBN General Insurance Limited recorded increase in Gross 
Premium Written above her performance in 2015 despite all the 
challenges that trailed the year. The synergy between FBN General 
Insurance Limited and FBN Insurance Limited, with strategic technical 
partnership with Sanlam is being explored for greater efficiency. The 
general insurance business segments were categorised into retail 
distribution channel, and corporate distribution channels.

The result of operation

During the year, Gross Premium Income increased by 21% from 
N1.8bn in 2015 to N2.19bn in 2016. This performance level was 
facilitated by the strategic restructuring of our business, with the 
marine, engineering and special risk classes of business growing by 
104%, 56% and 27%, respectively. The underwriting profits declined 
by 14% to N563m from N657m in 2015 owing to increase in 
unearned premium and reinsurance activities in 2016, especially 
in special risk. Profit Before Tax for 2016 was N195m as against 
N235m in 2015 which represented a 17% decrease, year-on-year; 
while Investment income grew by 43% in 2016 compared to 2015.

Our strategic priorities for 2016 were to strengthen our Risk 
Management and Corporate Governance through Board strategy and 
reappointment of members to steer the Company to competitive 
position. Distribution channels were expanded along geographical 
lines of regions and branches. We have made good progress against 
each priority.

The Company is well capitalised with robust liquidity and solvency 
margin above the regulatory benchmark. The total assets of the 
Company grew by 14% from N5.338bn in 2015 to N6.063bn in 
2016. Investment portfolio was well balanced during the year with 
more focus on government securities whose maturity profile were 
matched to those of insurance contract liabilities.

Our customers are central to our success and for FBN General 
Insurance Limited to be a sustainable and successful business; it 
must continue to provide good value and excellent service to its 
customers.



24 FBN GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED  Annual Report and Accounts 2016

FINANCIAL STATEMENTSRISK FACTORSGOVERNANCEBUSINESS REVIEWINTRODUCTION

Outlook

The Company will continue to invest in digital technology that can 
serve our customers more effectively, supported with international 
best practice to provide its customers with tailor-made solutions, 
superior services and specially designed products to assist its patrons 
through a network of regional and agency offices spread throughout 
Nigeria. Customers will only choose FBN General Insurance, stay with 
us and recommend us if we look after them well, so we continue 
to invest in new ways to serve them better. Our dedicated client 
service team continuously interacts with the customers to ensure 
prompt resolution of any complaint.

Management’s discussion and analysis
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Directors present their report together with the 
financial statements of the Company for year ended 
31 December 2016.

Legal form

FBN General Insurance Limited, (formerly Oasis Insurance Company 
Plc.) was incorporated on November 9, 1992 to carry on insurance 
business. It changed its name to Oasis Insurance Plc. on November 
26, 2004, following the successful listing of its shares on the 
Nigerian Stock Exchange. Oasis Insurance Plc. was acquired by FBN 
Insurance Limited during the year 2014, and thereafter delisted its 
shares on the Nigerian Stock Exchange. The Company is a subsidiary 
of FBN Insurance Limited (a member of FBNHoldings).

Principal activities

The Company is engaged in General Insurance Business.

Operating result 

  2016 2015
  N’000 N’000

Gross Premium 2,193,274 1,811,112

Net Underwriting Income 1,214,411 1,241,805

Profit before tax 194,661 234,784

Profit after tax 132,793 188,578

Appropriations

Transfer to contingency reserve 65,798 54,333

Transfer to retained earnings 66,995 134,245

  132,793 188,578

Dividends

No dividend is being proposed by the Board of Directors in respect 
of the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

Directors

The Directors who held office at various times during the year and 
to the date of this report were:

Olugbenga Shobo  Chairman 
    (Appointed March 21, 2016)

Bode Opadokun   Managing Director/CEO 
    (Appointed May 1, 2016)

Valentine Ojumah  Non-Executive Director

Hendrik Nel  Non-Executive Director

Johan Schalkwyk  Non-Executive Director 
    (Appointed August 12, 2016)

Titilayo Adebiyi  Independent Non-Executive Director
    (Appointed August 12, 2016)

Yusufu Modibbo  Independent Non-Executive Director
    (Appointed October 2, 2016)

Adenrele Kehinde  Chairperson   
    (Resigned March 18, 2016)

Caleb Yaro  Independent Non-Executive Director    
    (Resigned March 18, 2016)

Margaret Dawes  Non-Executive Director   
    (Resigned March 18, 2016)

Aderemi Ogunmefun Non-Executive Director   
    (Resigned March 18, 2016)

Appointment of Directors

The Directors who were appointed during the year are:

Olugbenga Shobo  (Appointed March 21, 2016)

Bode Opadokun   (Appointed May 1, 2016)

Johan Schalkwyk   (Appointed August 12, 2016) 
   
Titilayo Adebiyi   (Appointed August 12, 2016) 
   
Yusufu Modibbo   (Appointed October 2, 2016)
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Directors’ report

Retirement of Directors
In accordance with Article 89 of the Company’s Articles of 
Association, the following directors resigned during the period under 
review:

Adenrele Kehinde  Chairperson 
    (Resigned March 18, 2016)

Caleb Yaro  Independent Non-Executive Director 
    (Resigned March 18, 2016)

Margaret Dawes  Non-Executive Director 
    (Resigned March 18, 2016)

Aderemi Ogunmefun Non-Executive Director 
    (Resigned March 18, 2016)

Directors’ shareholding
The directors had no interest in, nor held shares in the Company.

Directors’ interest in contracts
None of the directors has notified the Company for the purpose of 
Section 277 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act(CAMA), of 
their direct or indirect interest in contracts or proposed contracts 
with the Company during the year.

Analysis of Company shareholding
The shareholding structure of the Company as at 31 December 
2016 is as follows:

  No. of shares % held

FBNInsurance  7,503,506,790 100.00%
Alhaji Tijjani M. Borodo 1 0.00%
Total 7,503,506,791 100.00%

Donation and gift
The Company made the following donations (2015: Nil) during the 
year:

2016 N

The Heart of Gold Foundation 213,500
Nigerian Council of Insurance Brokers 100,000
Biporal 250,000
  563,500

Property, plant and equipment
Movements in property, plant and equipment are shown in note 
9. The directors are of the opinion that the market value of the 
Company’s assets is not less than the value shown in the financial 
statements.

Employment and Employees

Employment of disabled persons

It is the policy of the Company that there should be no discrimination 
in considering applications for employment including those from 
disabled persons. All employees, whether disabled or not are given 
equal opportunities to develop. The Company had no disabled person 
in its employment as at 31 December 2016.

Health, safety at work and welfare of employees
Health and safety regulations are in force within the Company’s 
premises and employees are aware of existing regulations. 
The Company provides subsidy to all employees for medical, 
transportation, housing and lunch. 

Employees’ involvement and training
The Company is committed to keeping employees fully informed 
as much as possible regarding the Company’s performance and 
progress and seeking their views where ever practicable on matters, 
which particularly affect them as employees. Training is carried 
out at various levels through both in-house and external courses. 
Management, professional and technical expertise are the Company’s 
major assets and investment in their further development continues.
   
Post balance sheet events
There were no post balance sheet events which could have a material 
effect on the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 December 
2016 and the profit for the year ended on that date that have not 
been adequately provided for.
   
Auditors
The Auditors, Messrs. Akintola Williams Deloitte was appointed 
during the year as Auditors of the Company in line with S.357 
(1) of CAMA 1990. The Auditors, having satisfied the requirement 
of NAICOM and the Company, have indicated their willingness to 
continue in office during the year.

FBN General Insurance Limited financial statements have been 
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 10 February 2017.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Ayokunle Ayoko
Company Secretary 
FRC/2015/NBA/00000013900
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company has a robust Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) 
framework which has been designed along the requirements of 
NAICOM and the Committee of Sponsoring Organisation of the 
Treadway Commission (COSO). Effective risk management remains 
fundamental to the business activities of the Company and there 
is a framework that supports a culture where risk management is 
everyone’s responsibility from the levels of the Board and executive 
committees down to risk owners and respective risk units.

The Company’s enterprise risk management framework clearly 
identifies, assesses, monitors, evaluates and manages the principal 
risks it assumes in conducting its activities. These risks include 
credit, market and operational risks, as well as legal, compliance, 
reputational information security risks and underwriting risk. The 
risk structure includes Management’s approach to risk inherent in 
the business and its appetite for these risk exposures. Under this 
approach, the Company continuously assesses its top risks and 
monitors the risk profile against approved limits. The main strategies 
for managing and mitigating risk include policies and tools that 
target specific broad risk categories.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT 
PHILOSOPHY

The Company’s risk management principles and strategy is hinged 
on maximising value creation and returns on investments. The 
risk management strategy is such that will assist the Company in 
achieving its vision and delivery of business objectives. As part of the 
risk strategy, the Company’s enterprise risk management framework 
will ensure identification, quantification and treatment of all the 
foreseeable key risks. Our basis include that the risk management 
process will;

i) uphold the Company’s integrity and value system;

ii) add sustainable value to all the activities of the organisation;

iii) aid the understanding of the potential upside and downside of 
key risks;

iv) support compliance to regulatory requirements;

v) increase probability of success;

vi) reduce the uncertainty of achieving the organisation’s overall 
objectives;

vii) support the culture that “managing risk is everybody’s 
responsibilities” and pursue and reinforce this objective through 
risk awareness, clear executive sponsorship, setting risk appetite 
and risk boundaries that are generally known, agreed and widely 
discussed; and

viii) provide clear lines of responsibilities.

Our risk management context is entrenched in our mission statement 
of wealth protection through a team of risk and investment managers 
that provides our customers and other stakeholders with effective, 
creative solutions, assuring their financial security with our superior 
strength and capacity in the Nigeria market space.
 
Our risk culture

a) The Board and senior management consciously promote a 
responsible approach to risk management and ensure that 
the sustainability and reputation of the Company are not 
jeopardised while expanding its market share.

b) The responsibility for risk management in the Company is fully 
vested in the Board which in turn delegates such to senior 
management.

c) The Company pay adequate attention to both quantifiable and 
unquantifiable risks.

d) The Company management creates awareness of risk and risk 
management across board.

e) The Company continually subject its products, distribution 
channels and businesses to effective risk assessment process 
and it will not engage in any business until it has objectively 
assessed and managed the associated risk.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Our risk management framework was designed and embedded 
in our operating culture and processes. There are clear levels of 
responsibilities (from the Board of Directors to the Staff Unit) 
assigned for effective management of our business risk.

We operate and maintain three levels of risk governance structure 
for the oversight and management of risk. These are:

1st line-management

The Board includes the Board of Directors and the Board Audit and 
Risk Committee and is charged with the responsibility for oversight 
of the enterprise risk management process, proposing and approving 
the Risk Appetite level for the business and delegating responsibility 
of detailed oversight to Risk Committee.
 
2nd line-risk oversight

This consists of the Risk Management Committees and the Chief 
Risk Officer of the Company. The Management evaluates the risks 
inherent within the business and ensure that they are captured 
appropriately within the business risk profile. The Chief Risk Officer 
facilitates an improved understanding of risk management process 
throughout the organisation in order to embed and improve 
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continuously a risk awareness culture and to work with business 
management to review and update the Risk and control log.

The Chief Risk Officer (CRO) is responsible for setting policies and 
procedures necessary for the implementation of the risk framework. 
The role of the Chief Risk officer includes communicating the 
Company’s risk profile to the Board and Management Committee 
and also communicates the decisions of the Board and Risk 
Management Committee to the other members of the Company.
 
3rd-line independent assurance

This is the last line or level of defense within our risk management 
structure and comprises the internal audit and external auditors’ 
function that provides independent and objective assurance of 
the effectiveness and adequacy of risk management control and 
governance process.

Risk appetite

The Company is committed to driving its business initiatives without 
loss of value or unmitigated exposures to related risks. In order to 
improve the value of shareholders’ wealth and remain profitable, 
the Company designed its appetite for risk exposures at any given 
situation. The risk appetite represents the amount of risk exposure or 
potential adverse impact from an event that the Company is willing 
to accept/retain. The risk appetite of the Company is set by the 
Board of Directors annually, and it is aimed at minimising erosion of 
earnings or capital due to avoidable losses in the trading, investment 
and underwriting books, or from frauds or operational inefficiencies. 
The Company’s Risk Appetite objective include:

i) Optimisation of capital employed through enhanced returns on 
equity.

ii) Consistently strive to minimise overall cost of risk exposure and 
its management through effective risk mitigation practices.

iii) Losses due to frauds and operational lapses should be a 
maximum of a specified percentage of gross earnings and in 
any case be lower than the industry average.

We constantly recognise that nature of risk is dynamic and pervasive 
in our business and the responsibility is that of all. Hence, we have 
created a structured approach across all functions of the organisation 
flowing from strategic planning to the service level in order to 
identify, mitigate and report these risks. Our structured approach 
to managing risks is evident in the integration of the internal audit 
function, which is charged with the responsibility of undertaking 
risk-based assurance review of all business. A quarterly assessment 
exercise is conducted and rating assigned by Risk Management Unit 
of the Company headed by the Chief Risk Officer.

Risk management policies and procedures

The Enterprise-wide Risk Management policies and procedures 
which have been instituted strategically are aimed at managing 
potential, inherent and residual risk categories in our operations. 

The Board recognises that the practice of risk management is 
critical to the achievement of corporate objectives and has actively 
encouraged a risk culture that embraces innovation and opportunity, 
primed risk-taking and acceptance of risk which is inherent in all 
our activities, whilst reducing barriers to successful implementation.

RISK CLASSIFICATION

The Company is exposed to different kinds of risk while conducting 
its business. Some of these include:
 
Market risk/investment risk 

This is the risk to a company’s financial condition resulting from 
adverse movements in the level or volatility of market prices. 
The Company has a structured process and basis for measuring 
and calculating the probability of loss and possible impact on the 
Company’s capital resources caused by adverse changes in the 
price of stock and shares, property, exchange rates and other 
market conditions that are relevant. The Company has established 
investment limits in its operational guidelines and policy of assets 
diversification in line with NAICOM regulations to prevent over 
concentration and over exposure to any particular market.

Credit risk

This is the risk that counterparty will default on payment or fail to 
perform an obligation to the Company. The Company has a system 
for conducting due diligence on the credit worthiness of any party to 
which it has credit exposure. The Company does not ordinarily grant 
credit facilities to third parties in the course of its business but could 
have credit risk associated with Insurance Brokers consequent upon 
the “No Premium No Cover” enforcement by NAICOM.

Operational risk

This is the risk of loss from inadequate or failed internal processes, 
people and systems or from external events which arises from the 
potential that inadequate information systems, operational problems, 
breaches in internal controls, fraud, or unforeseen catastrophes will 
result in unexpected losses. The Company has policies that cover risk 
that may arise from people, systems and internal process failures. 
The policies include staff recruitment, training, retention plans, 
succession plans, remuneration and welfare benefits, designing 
standard operating procedure and policies, driving compliance 
culture, process automation, Information Technology support 
systems, data integrity, IT systems access, etc.

Enterprise risk management
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk exist when there is insufficient cash flow to meet 
the Company’s operational and financial obligations and is usually 
associated with inability to liquidate assets or obtain funding from 
external sources to pay claims and other liabilities when due. The 
Company manages its liquidity risk through appropriate assets and 
liability management strategy through the Investment Management 
Committee. Monthly reports and review of liquidity gaps is conducted 
to assess the level of liquidity risk.

Reinsurance risk

This is the risk of inadequate reinsurance cover to mitigate 
underwriting risk. It usually occurs when there is insolvency of 
a reinsurer, discovery of exposures without current reinsurance 
coverage, or exhaustion of reinsurance covers through multiple 
losses. The Company has documented reinsurance policies for 
adequate reinsurance arrangements and treaties for all categories 
of insurance business transacted. The policies include the process 
for reinsurer selection, monitoring, claims recovery, etc.

Underwriting risk

Underwriting is the process by which an insurer determines the 
conditions necessary and suitable to accept insurance risk. The risk 
crystallises when there are severe and frequent claims against the 
Company’s projected capacity. The Company has embedded internal 
control processes to guide its insurance business and guide against 
the risk of unexpected losses and capital erosion. There is well 
documented underwriting policies and procedure and are enforced 
throughout the organisation.

Business risk

The Company’s business risk is associated with gaining market shares 
and remains profitable. This risk is considered through documented 
process for product development and launch, business segment 
profitability analysis, stakeholder’s engagement, as well as being 
embedded in our brand promise.

Reputational risk

This is the risk of events that could cause public distrust and 
damages to the Company’s integrity, reputation and goodwill 
especially in the eyes of the customers, regulators, competitors, and 
the general public. We manage reputational risk through a structured 
approach for defining and implementing core values and acceptable 
standard of behavior which the staff are expected to follow while 
conducting the day-to-day business of the Company. The Company 
risk assessment and monitoring process has embedded controls 
for testing reputational risk and the outcome of such exercise is 
communicated to the Board Risk Committee on a quarterly basis.

Legal/compliance risk management

The Company has procedures to ensure that all statutory regulations 
are completely adhered to by the by business unit at all time. These 
regulations include those set by NAICOM and other relevant agencies 
of government. There are internal control processes that identify 
potential breaches to the regulations and are promptly mitigated. 
Some of the control processes include:

a) Know-your-customer (KYC) procedure

b) Anti-money laundering/combating the financing of terrorism 
(AML/CFT)

c) Anti-bribery and corruption measures

d) Guidelines for adherence to Corporate Governance principles

e) Gift policies

f) Whistleblowing policies
 
Risk report and risk map

Issues arising from risk assessment process are collated and 
presented in a report called the Risk Report which forms the basis of 
constructing the risk map. The risk map draws senior management’s 
attention to the critical risk factors, as well as the adequacy of 
existing controls to mitigate the risk. The risk map provides a snap 
short summary of the significant risk and the ratings and probability 
of occurrence within a specific period. This forms the basis for 
estimating the potential operational loss.

Risk control self-assessment (RCSA)

The Company has a mechanism for risk assessment on periodic basis 
and this is known as Risk Control Self-Assessment (RCSA) principle. 
It involves the tests and procedures or assessments that need to 
be performed periodically to assure that key controls are in place 
and are working effectively as designed. The control requirements 
are proactively assessed through process risk analysis and review of 
policy requirements, loss events, and audit findings. The Company 
then set controls required to comply with policy requirements and 
test these processes for adequacy and risk mitigation capability. Risk 
Champions are engaged in each business or risk unit and facilitates 
the process of risk control self-assessment in the Company.

Key risk indicators

The key risk indicator (KRI) provides trend analysis of risk exposures 
or deviation from standard processes. This helps the risk officers 
and risk owners to promptly identify increasing threat to business 
activities and escalate to the appropriate senior levels for control 
and to probably review the risk appetite. The trend analysis is one 

Enterprise risk management
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Enterprise risk management

of the sources of data for the risk report and risk map documented 
by the Company.

Loss events reporting

The Company has a Loss Event Register that captures all actual loss 
sustained during operational processes.

Health and safety management

The Health and safety management has been instituted to provide 
and maintain safe healthy working conditions, work equipment and 
systems for all staff. This responsibility also extends to visitors, 
contractors and others who may potentially be affected by our 
activities. The Health and Safety Policy framework underpins the 
policy statements, roles and responsibilities of HSE officer.

Business Continuity Plan (BCP)

The Business Continuity Plan (BCP) has been designed to promote 
resilience against operational threats especially with regards to 
continuity of critical operations, in the event of a disaster or disruption 
to critical operations. The BCP framework also addresses adherence 
to contingency planning procedures, in the event of emergencies. 
We aim to continually improve on inherent gaps identified during 
each simulation exercise.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FBN GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FBN 
General Insurance Limited which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at 31 December 2016, the statement of profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in 
equity, statement of cash flow for the year then ended, and the 
notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant 
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view 
of the financial position of FBN General Insurance Limited as at 31 
December 2016 and the financial performance and cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards, the Companies and Allied Matters Act Cap 
C20 LFN 2004, Insurance Act I17 LFN 2004 and the Financial 
Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards 
on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Nigeria (ICAN) Professional Code of Conduct 
and Guide for Accountants and other independence requirements 
applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Nigeria. 
We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the ICAN Code and in accordance with other ethical 
requirements applicable to performing audits in Nigeria. The ICAN 
Code is consistent with the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts 
A and B). We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other matter

The financial statements of FBN General Insurance Limited for the 
year ended 31 December 2015 were audited by another auditor 
who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 5 
February 2016.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the Corporate Governance Report, 
Management Commentary, Enterprise Risk Management Report, 
Directors’ Report, Chairman’s Statement, Result at a glance and 

MD/CEO’s review, which we obtained prior to the date of this 
auditor’s report and the integrated report, which is expected to be 
made available to us after that date. The other information does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information 
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact.  We have nothing 
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial 
statements 

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies and 
Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFN 2004, Insurance Act I17 2004 and 
Financial Reporting Council Act, 2011 and for such internal control 
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible 
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FBN GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
We also:
 
� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

� Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the directors.

� Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to continue as a going concern. Evaluate the overall 
presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Company’s financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

� Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 
financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Company to express an opinion on the financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision 
and performance of the Company’s audit. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion.

 

We communicate with the Audit Committee and the directors 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
 
We also provide the Audit Committee and directors with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

� In accordance with the Sixth Schedule of the Companies and 
Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFN 2004, we expressly state 
that:

i) We have obtained all the information and explanation which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit.

 
ii) The Company has kept proper books of account, so far as 

appears from our examination of those books.
 
iii) The Company’s statement of financial position and its 

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
are in agreement with the books of account.

� No contravention of the sections of Insurance Act or NAICOM 
circulars and guidelines came to our knowledge during the year 
ended 31 December 2016.

For: Akintola Williams Deloitte 
Chartered Accountants
Lagos, Nigeria
10 March, 2017

Engagement Partner: Joshua Ojo
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000000849
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The Board Risk Management Committee of FBN General Insurance Limited hereby declare as follows:

a) The Company has systems in place for the purpose of ensuring compliance with NAICOM guidelines;

b) The Board is satisfied with the efficacy of the processes and systems surrounding the production of financial information of the Company;

c) The Company has in place a Risk Management Strategy, developed in accordance with the requirements of NAICOM guideline on 
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM), setting out its approach to risk management; and

d) The systems that are in place for managing and monitoring risks, and the risk management framework, are appropriate to the Company, 
having regard to such factors as the size, business mix and complexity of the Company’s operations.

        
        
              
Valentine Ojumah        Bode Opadokun
FRC/2012/CIIN/00000002422       FRC/2014/CIIN/00000008646

RISK DECLARATION
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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In accordance with the provision of Section 359 (6) 
of the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 
Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004, we confirm 
that we have seen the audit plan and scope and the 
Management letter on the audit of the accounts of 
the Company and the response.

In our opinion, the plan and scope of the audit for the year ended 
31 December 2016 were adequate.

We have reviewed the auditor’s findings and we are satisfied with 
the Management response thereon.

We also confirm that the accounting and reporting policies of the 
Company are in accordance with legal requirements and ethical 
practices.

Valentine Ojumah
FRC/2012/CIIN/00000002422

MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
1. Yusufu Modibbo  - Chairman
2. Valentine Ojumah  - Member
3. Hendrik Nel   - Member
4. Johan Schalkwyk  - Member

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TO THE MEMBERS OF FBN GENERAL INSURANCE
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors of FBN General Insurance Limited are responsible for the preparation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2016, 
and the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended, in compliance with  
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied 
Matters Act of Nigeria, the Insurance Act of Nigeria, relevant guidelines and circulars issued by the National 
Insurance Commission (NAICOM) and Financial Reporting Council Act of Nigeria.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for:
                             
� properly selecting and applying accounting policies;

� presenting information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable 
information; 

� providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to understand 
the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Company’s financial position and financial performance; and      

� making an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for:
                             
� designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls throughout the Company;

� maintaining adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at anytime the financial position of the Company, and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements 
of the Company comply with IFRS;    

� maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with the legislation of Nigeria and IFRS;

� taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Company; and

� preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

Going Concern:

The Directors have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and have no reason to believe the 
Company will not remain a going concern in the year ahead.
                   
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 February 
2017. 
           
By order of the Board

Olugbenga Shobo       Bode Opadokun
Chairman        Managing Director/CEO
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000002330         FRC/2014/CIIN/00000008646

FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CERTIFICATION BY COMPANY SECRETARY

In my capacity as Company Secretary, I hereby certify, in terms 
of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, that for the year ended 
31 December 2016, the Company has lodged all such returns as 
are required of a company in terms of this Act, and that all such 
returns are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct 
and up-to-date.

Ayoko Ayokunle Olushola
Company Secretary
FRC/2015/NBA/00000013900
Lagos, Nigeria

10 February 2017
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CERTIFICATION OF NON-LIFE INSURANCE LIABILITY 
VALUATION BY ACTUARY

Alexander Forbes Consulting Actuaries Nigeria verifies that the calculation of the non-life insurance liabilities as per the valuation as at 
31 December 2016 is appropriate. We are satisfied that the insurance liabilities as per valuation are sufficiently prudent and appropriate 
given the nature of the business and existing liabilities. The results of this valuation are as follows:

Reserve As at 31 December 2016 (N)

Gross OCR 611,367,768
Gross IBNR 252,314,408
Total gross claims liabilities 863,682,176

Reserve As at 31 December 2016 (N)

Gross UPR 750,636,542
Gross DAC 132,296,953
Gross AURR -

Anton Reinke (FIA FASSA)     Bioku Bankole
Head, Insurance Consulting      AFCAN

FRC/2016/NAS/00000013781
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RESULTS AT A GLANCE

 31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
 N’000  N’000

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT
Gross premium written 2,193,274 1,811,112

Gross premium income 1,957,669 1,869,296

Net premium income 1,098,434 1,126,403

Investment and other income 498,003 285,354

Profit before tax 194,661 234,784

Profit after tax 132,793 188,578

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Total assets 6,062,904 5,338,441

Insurance contract liabilities 1,614,318 1,142,450

Total liabilities 1,958,245 1,359,554

Earnings per share (basic) 2k 2k
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

LEGAL FORM

FBN General Insurance Limited, (formerly Oasis Insurance Company Limited) was incorporated on November 9, 1992 to carry on insurance 
business. It changed its name to Oasis Insurance Plc on November 26, 2004, following the successful listing of its shares on the Nigeria 
Stock Exchange. Oasis Insurance Plc was acquired by FBN Insurance Limited during the year 2014, and delisted its shares on the Nigerian 
Stock Exchange.

Oasis Insurance Plc changed its name to FBN General Insurance Limited on June 29, 2015. The Company is now a subsidiary of FBN 
Insurance Limited (a member of FBNHoldings).

The Company’s registered office address is 298, Ikorodu Road, Anthony, Lagos.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

FBN General Insurance Limited is a non-life insurance company and underwrites General and Special Risks insurance businesses. The 
Company is fully capitalised in line with Insurance Act 2003 and NAICOM guidelines. The non-life business underwritten by the Company 
are: Motor, Marine (Cargo and Hull), Fire and Special Perils, Engineering Insurance, General Accident, and Oil and Gas businesses.

The Company pays attention to claims payment to optimise customers’ satisfaction. The Company also invests its available funds in interest 
bearing and highly liquid instruments to generate adequate returns to meet its claims obligations.

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are stated below. The accounting policies have been 
consistently applied to all periods presented in the financial statements, unless otherwise stated.

1.1 Statement of Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards
 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB); the International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC); and the relevant national regulations like Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAMA) and Insurance 
Act 2003, to the extent that they are not in conflict with IFRS.

These financial statements comprise the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of financial position, the statement of 
changes in equity, the cash flow statement and the accompanying notes. The accounting policies set out have been consistently applied 
in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, and the comparative information presented in these financial 
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

1.2 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern principles under the historical cost convention basis, 
except for revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, and other financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through the profit 
and loss, all of which have been measured at fair value. The financial statements are presented in Nigeria Naira (N) which is the Company’s 
functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand naira except when otherwise indicated.

1.3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the IFRS requires the use of certain critical estimates. It also requires the 
Management to exercise its judgments in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have 
a significant impact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions changed. The Management believe that the underlying 
assumptions are appropriate and that the Company’s financial statements therefore present the financial position and results fairly.

The appropriate estimates and judgements have been applied in the preparation of these financial statements.
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1.4 Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. It includes an analysis of underwriting risk, solvency 
margin, as well as classification of assets and liabilities due for recoverable or due for settlement within 12 months after the reporting date 
(current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non–current). Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net 
amount reported in the statement of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are not 
offset in the income statement unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in 
the accounting policies of the Company.

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

2.1 New standards and amendments that will be effective for reporting period that begin 1 January 2016

A number of standards, interpretations and amendments thereto, had been issued by the IASB which are effective but do not impact on 
these consolidated financial statements as summarised in the table below:

Statement of significant accounting policies

IFRS    EFFECTIVE DATE  SUBJECT OF STANDARD/AMENDMENT

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral 
Accounts

Accounting for Acquisitions of 
Interests in Joint Operations 
(Amendments to IFRS 11)

1 January 2016

Effective for annual 
periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2016

IFRS  14 specifies the accounting for regulatory deferral 
account balances that arise from rate-regulated activities. 
The standard is available only to first-time adopters of 
IFRSs  who recognised regulatory deferral account balances 
under their previous GAAP. IFRS 14 permits eligible first-
time adopters of IFRSs  to continue their previous GAAP 
rate-regulated accounting policies, with limited changes, 
and requires separate presentation of regulatory deferral 
account balances in the statement of financial position 
and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income. 

Disclosures are also required to identify the nature of, and 
risks associated with, the form of rate regulation that has 
given rise to the recognition of regulatory deferral account 
balances.

This standard does not impact on the consolidated financial 
statements as the Group does not provide services subject 
to rate regulation and in addition, the Group has applied 
IFRS 1 in prior year when converting to IFRS.

The amendments to IFRS 11 provide guidance on how 
to account for the acquisition of an interest in a joint 
operation in which the activities constitute a business 
as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations. Specifically, 
the amendments state that the relevant principles on 
accounting for business combinations in IFRS 3 and other 
standards (e.g. IAS 12 Income Taxes regarding recognition 
of deferred taxes at the time of acquisition and IAS 36 
Impairment of Assets regarding impairment testing of a 
cash-generating unit to which goodwill on acquisition of 
a joint operation has been allocated) should be applied. 
The same requirements should be applied to the formation 
of a joint operation if and only if an existing business is 
contributed to the joint operation by one of the parties that 
participate in the joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant 
information required by IFRS 3 and other standards for 
business combinations.
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IFRS    EFFECTIVE DATE  SUBJECT OF STANDARD/AMENDMENT

Clarification of Acceptable 
Methods of Depreciation and 
Amortisation (Amendments to 
IAS 16 and IAS 38)

Agriculture: Bearer Plants 
(Amendments to IAS 16 and 
IAS 41)

Effective for annual 
periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2016

Effective for annual 
periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2016

The amendments to IAS 16 prohibit entities from using 
a revenue-based depreciation method for items of 
property, plant and equipment. The amendments to IAS 38 
introduce a rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an 
appropriate basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. 
This presumption can only be rebutted in the following two 
limited circumstances: 

a) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of 
revenue. For example, an entity could acquire a concession 
to explore and extract gold from a gold mine. The expiry  
of the contract might be based on a fixed amount of total 
revenue to be generated from the extraction and not be 
based on time or on the amount of gold extracted. Provided 
that the contract specifies a fixed total amount of revenue 
to be generated on which amortisation is to be determined, 
the revenue that is to be generated might be an appropriate 
basis for amortising the intangible asset; or 

b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and the 
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible 
asset are highly correlated. Based on the assessment, it was 
noted that none of its intangible assets or property, plant 
and equipment are being amortised or depreciated based on 
revenue.

The amendments bring bearer plants, which are used solely 
to grow produce, into the scope of IAS 16 so that they 
are accounted for in the same way as property, plant and 
equipment. For the purpose of bringing bearer plants from 
the scope of IAS 41 into the scope of IAS 16 and therefore 
enabling entities to measure them at cost subsequent to 
initial recognition or at revaluation, a definition of a ‘bearer 
plant’ is introduced into both standards. A bearer plant is 
defined as a living plant that:

i. is used in the production or supply of agricultural 
produce;

ii. is expected to bear produce for more than one period; 
and

iii. has a remote likelihood of being sold as agricultural 
produce, except for incidental scrap sales.

The scope sections of both standards are then amended 
to clarify that biological assets except for bearer plants 
are accounted for under IAS 41 while bearer plants are 
accounted for under IAS 16.

Statement of significant accounting policies
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IFRS    EFFECTIVE DATE  SUBJECT OF STANDARD/AMENDMENT

Equity Method in Separate 
Financial Statements 
(Amendments to IAS 27)

Disclosure Initiative 
(Amendments to IAS 1)

Effective for annual 
periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2016

Effective for annual 
periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2016

The amendments reinstate the equity method as an 
accounting option for investments in subsidiaries, joint 
ventures and associates in an entity’s separate financial 
statements. The amendments allow an entity to account for 
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 
in its separate financial statements at cost, in accordance 
with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (or IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for entities 
that have not yet adopted IFRS 9), or using the equity 
method as described in IAS 28 Investments in Associates 
and Joint Ventures. The Group has assessed the impact of 
this amendment in its financial statements and noted that 
this amendment does not affect the entity’s accounting 
treatment of its investment in its subsidiary.

The amendments aim at clarifying IAS 1 to address 
perceived impediments to preparers  exercising their 
judgement  in presenting their financial reports. Disclosure 
Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1) makes the following 
changes:

i. Materiality. The amendments clarify that (1) 
information should not be obscured by aggregating or 
by providing immaterial information, (2) materiality 
considerations apply to all parts of the financial 
statements, and (3) even when a standard requires a 
specific disclosure, materiality considerations do apply.

 
ii. Statement of financial position and statement of 

profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The 
amendments (1) introduce a clarification that the 
list of line items to be presented in these statements 
can be disaggregated and aggregated as relevant and 
additional guidance on subtotals in these statements 
and (2) clarify that an entity’s share of OCI of equity-
accounted associates and joint ventures should be 
presented in aggregate as single line items based on 
whether or not it will subsequently be reclassified to 
profit or loss.

 
iii. Notes. The amendments add additional examples 

of possible ways of ordering the notes to clarify 
that understandability and comparability should 
be considered when determining the order of the 
notes and to demonstrate that the notes need not 
be presented in the order so far listed in paragraph 
114 of IAS 1. The IASB  also removed guidance and 
examples with regard to the identification of significant 
accounting policies that were perceived as being 
potentially unhelpful.

Statement of significant accounting policies
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IFRS    EFFECTIVE DATE  SUBJECT OF STANDARD/AMENDMENT

Investment Entities: Applying 
the Consolidation Exception 
(Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 
12 and IAS 28)

Effective for annual 
periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2016

The amendments address issues that have arisen in 
the context of applying the consolidation exception for 
investment entities. Investment Entities: The amendments 
confirm that the exemption from preparing consolidated 
financial statements for an intermediate parent entity 
is available to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an 
investment entity, even if the investment entity measures 
all of its subsidiaries at fair value. It also states that a 
subsidiary that provides services related to the parent’s 
investment activities should not be consolidated if the 
subsidiary itself is an investment entity. In addition, when 
applying the equity method to an associate or a joint 
venture, a non-investment entity investor in an investment 
entity may retain the fair value measurement applied by 
the associate or joint venture to its interests in subsidiaries. 
In addition, an investment entity measuring all of its 
subsidiaries at fair value must provide the disclosures 
relating to investment entities as required by IFRS 12.

Statement of significant accounting policies

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, except as detailed below)

The Annual Improvements include amendments to a number of IFRSs, which have been summarised below:

IFRS 5

Non-current Assets 
Held for Sale and 
Discontinued Operations

IFRS 7

Financial Instruments: 
Disclosures

(with consequential 
amendments to IFRS 1)

Changes in methods of disposal.

(i) Servicing contracts

(ii) Applicability of the amendments 
to IFRS 7 on offsetting 
disclosure to condensed interim 
financial statements

The amendment introduces specific guidance in IFRS 5 for 
when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal group) 
from held for sale to held for distribution to owners (or 
vice versa). The amendment clarifies that such a change is 
considered as a continuation of the original plan of disposal 
and accordingly an entity should not apply paragraphs 27-
29 of IFRS 5 regarding changes to a plan of sale in those 
situations.

The amendment provides additional guidance to clarify 
whether a servicing contract is continuing  involvement in a 
transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures required 
in relation to transferred assets. Also, the amendment 
clarifies that the offsetting disclosures are not specifically 
required for all interim periods. However, the disclosures 
may need to be included in the condensed interim financial 
statements to satisfy the requirements in IAS 34 Interim 
Financial Reporting.

STANDARD  SUBJECT OF AMENDMENT  DETAILS
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Statement of significant accounting policies

New and revised IFRSs that are not mandatorily effective (but allow early application) for the year ending 
31 December 2016

Below is a list of new and revised IFRSs that are not yet mandatorily effective (but allow early application) for the year ending 31 
December 2016:  
  
i. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

ii. IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

iii. Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

iv. IFRS 16 Leases

v. Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

vi. Amendments to IAS 7 Additional disclosure on changes in financing activities
 
vii. Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

viii. Amendments to IFRS 4 upon applying IFRS 9

IAS 19

Employee Benefits

IAS 34

Interim Financial 
Reporting

Discount rate: regional market issue

Disclosure of information ‘elsewhere 
in the interim financial report’.

The amendment clarifies that the rate used to discount 
post-employment benefit obligations should be determined 
by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on high quality corporate bonds. The basis for 
conclusions to the amendment also clarifies that the depth 
of the market for high quality corporate bonds should be 
assessed at a currency level which is consistent with the 
currency in which the benefits are to be paid. For currencies 
for which there is no deep market in such high quality 
bonds, the market yields (at the end of the reporting 
period) on government bonds denominated in that currency 
should be used.

The amendment clarifies the requirements relating to 
information required by paragraph 16A of IAS 34 that is 
presented elsewhere within the interim financial report but 
outside the interim financial statements. The amendment 
requires that such information to be included either in the 
interim financial statements or incorporated by way of a 
cross-reference from the interim financial statements to the 
other part of the interim financial report that is available 
to users on the same terms and at the same time as the 
interim financial statements.

STANDARD  SUBJECT OF AMENDMENT  DETAILS
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IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)

In July 2014, the IASB finalised the reform of financial instruments accounting and issued IFRS 9 (as revised in 2014), which contains 
the requirements for a) the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, b) impairment methodology, and c) 
general hedge accounting. IFRS 9 (as revised in 2014) will supersede IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement upon 
its effective date.   

Phase 1: Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

With respect to the classification and measurement, the number of categories of financial assets under IFRS 9 has been reduced; all 
recognised financial assets that are currently within the scope of IAS 39 will be subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair 
value under IFRS 9. Specifically: 
  
� a debt instrument that (i) is held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows and (ii) has 

contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding must be measured at 
amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment), unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
under the fair value option.

� a debt instrument that (i) is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows 
and selling financial assets and (ii) has contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, must be measured at FVTOCI, unless the asset is designated at FVTPL 
under the fair value option.

� all other debt instruments must be measured at FVTPL.

� all other debt instruments must be measured at FVTPL.

� all equity investments are to be measured in the statement of financial position at fair value, with gains and losses recognised in 
profit or loss except that if an equity investment is not held for trading, an irrevocable election can be made at initial recognition to 
measure the investment at FVTOCI, with dividend income recognised in profit or loss.

IFRS 9 also contains requirements for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and de-recognition requirements. One major 
change from IAS 39 relates to the presentation of changes in the fair value of a financial liability designated as at FVTPL attributable to 
changes in the credit risk of that liability. Under IFRS 9, such changes are presented in other comprehensive income, unless the presentation 
of the effect of the change in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch 
in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. 
Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as FVTPL is presented in profit or loss.

Phase 2: Impairment methodology

The impairment model under IFRS 9 reflects expected credit losses, as opposed to incurred credit losses under IAS 39. Under the 
impairment approach in IFRS 9, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised. Instead, 
an entity always accounts for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit losses 
should be updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Phase 3: Hedge accounting

The general hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 retain the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms in IAS 39. However, greater 
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments 
that qualify as hedging instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In 
addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. 

Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is no longer required. Far more disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management 
activities have been introduced.

Statement of significant accounting policies
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The work on macro hedging by the IASB is still at a preliminary stage - a discussion paper was issued in April 2014 to gather preliminary 
views and direction from constituents with a comment period which ended on 17 October 2014. The project is under redeliberation at the 
time of writing. 

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)

IFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. It 
will supersede the following revenue Standards and Interpretations upon its effective date:

� IAS 18 Revenue;

� IAS 11 Construction Contracts; 

� IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes; 

� IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate; 

� IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers; and 

� SIC 31 Revenue-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services.

As suggested by the title of the new revenue Standard, IFRS 15 will only cover revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 
15, a customer of an entity is a party that has contracted with the entity to obtain goods or services that are an output of the entity’s 
ordinary activities in exchange for consideration. 

Unlike the scope of IAS 18, the recognition and measurement of interest income and dividend income from debt and equity investments are 
no longer within the scope of IFRS 15. Instead, they are within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 
(or IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, if IFRS 9 is early adopted). 

As mentioned above, the new revenue Standard has a single model to deal with revenue from contracts with customers. Its core principle 
is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects 
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.  
  
The new revenue Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition and measurement:

Step 1:  Identify the contract with a customer

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Far more prescriptive guidance has been introduced by the new revenue Standard: 

� Whether or not a contract (or a combination of contracts) contains more than one promised good or service, and if so, when and 
how the promised goods or services should be unbundled. 

� Whether the transaction price allocated to each performance obligation should be recognised as revenue over time or at a point in 
time. Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied, which is when ‘control’ of the goods or 
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Unlike IAS 18, the new Standard does not 

Statement of significant accounting policies
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include separate guidance for ‘sales of goods’ and ‘provision of services’; rather, the new Standard requires entities to assess whether 
revenue should be recognised over time or a particular point in time regardless of whether revenue relates to ‘sales of goods’ or 
‘provision of services’. 

Transitional provisions
IFRS 9 (as revised in 2014) is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier application permitted. If an 
entity elects to apply IFRS 9 early, it must apply all of the requirements in IFRS 9 at the same time, except for those relating to:

1.  the presentation of fair value gains and losses attributable to changes in the credit risk of financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL, 
the requirements for which an entity may early apply without applying the other requirements in IFRS 9; and

2.  hedge accounting, for which an entity may choose to continue to apply the hedge accounting requirements of IAS 39 instead of the 
requirements of IFRS 9.

An entity may early apply the earlier versions of IFRS 9 instead of the 2014 version if the entity’s date of initial application of IFRS 9 is 
before 1 February 2015. The date of initial application is the beginning of the reporting period when an entity first applies the requirements 
of IFRS 9.

IFRS 9 contains specific transitional provisions for i) classification and measurement of financial assets; ii) impairment of financial assets; 
and iii) hedge accounting. Please see IFRS 9 for details. 
 
� When the transaction price includes a variable consideration element, how it will affect the amount and timing of revenue to be 

recognised. The concept of variable consideration is broad; a transaction price is considered variable due to discounts, rebates, 
refunds, credits, price concessions, incentives, performance bonuses, penalties and contingency arrangements. The new Standard 
introduces a high hurdle for variable consideration to be recognised as revenue – that is, only to the extent that it is highly probable 
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the 
variable consideration is subsequently resolved. 

� When costs incurred to obtain a contract and costs to fulfill a contract can be recognised as an asset.  
  
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate 
or Joint Venture
The amendments clarify that the exemption from preparing consolidated financial statements is available to a parent entity that is a 
subsidiary of an investment entity, even if the investment entity measures all its subsidiaries at fair value in accordance with IFRS 10. 
Consequential amendments have also been made to IAS 28 to clarify that the exemption from applying the equity method is also 
applicable to an investor in an associate or joint venture if that investor is a subsidiary of an investment entity that measures all its 
subsidiaries at fair value. 

The amendments further clarify that the requirement for an investment entity to consolidate a subsidiary providing services related to the 
former’s investment activities applies only to subsidiaries that are not investment entities themselves.

Moreover, the amendments clarify that in applying the equity method of accounting to an associate or a joint venture that is an investment 
entity, an investor may retain the fair value measurements that the associate or joint venture used for its subsidiaries. 

Lastly, clarification is also made that an investment entity that measures all its subsidiaries at fair value should provide the disclosures 
required by IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities.

The amendments apply retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 with earlier application permitted. 
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IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases was issued, it specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognise, measure, present and disclose leases. The standard provides 
a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12months or 
less or the underlying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16’s approach to lessor 
accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor, IAS 17.

Effective date of this standard is 1 January 2018.

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
IAS 12 Income Taxes was amended to clarify the following aspects: Unrealised losses on debt instruments measured at fair value and 
measured at cost for tax purposes give rise to a deductible temporary difference regardless of whether the debt instrument’s holder 
expects to recover the carrying amount of the debt instrument by sale or by use. The carrying amount of an asset does not limit the 
estimation of probable future taxable profits. Estimates for future taxable profits exclude tax deductions resulting from the reversal of 
deductible temporary differences. An entity assesses a deferred tax asset in combination with other deferred tax assets. Where tax law 
restricts the utilisation of tax losses, an entity would assess a deferred tax asset in combination with other deferred tax assets of the 
same type.

Effective date of the amendment is 1 January 2017.

Amendments to IAS 7 Additional disclosure on changes in financing activities
IAS 7 was amended to clarify that entities shall provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in 
liabilities arising from financing activities.

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
IFRS 2 was amended to clarify the standard in relation to the accounting for cash-settled share-based payment transactions that include 
a performance condition, the classification of share-based payment transactions with net settlement features, and the accounting for 
modifications of share based payment transactions from cash-settled to equity-settled.

Effective date is 1 January 2018.

Amendments to IFRS 4 upon applying IFRS 9
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts was amended to provide two options for entities that issue insurance contracts within the scope of IFRS 4:

i.  an option that permits entities to reclassify, from profit or loss to other comprehensive income, some of the income or expenses 
arising from designated financial assets; this is the so-called overlay approach;

ii.  an optional temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 for entities whose predominant activity is issuing contracts within the scope 
of IFRS 4; this is the so-called deferral approach.

The application of both approaches is optional and an entity is permitted to stop applying them before the new insurance contracts 
standard is applied. Overlay approach to be applied when IFRS 9 is first applied.
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5 FOREIGN CURRENCY

(i) Reporting currency
The financial statements are presented/measured in Nigerian currency (Naira) which is the Company’s functional currency. Except 
otherwise indicated, financial information presented in naira have been rounded to the nearest thousand. 

(ii) Transactions and balances
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into naira at the rate ruling on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets 
and monetary liabilities at the balance sheet date denominated in foreign currencies are translated into naira at the rate ruling on the 
balance sheet date. Any gains or losses arising on translation are recognised in the income statement.

Non–monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical exchange rate if held at historical cost or year-end exchange rate, If held 
at fair value, and the resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are recognise in either the income statement or shareholder’s  equity 
depending on the treatment of the gain or loss on the assets or liability.

6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and at bank, call deposits and short-term highly liquid financial assets with original 
maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are 
used by the Company in the management of its short-term commitments. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash balances 
and fixed deposits.

7 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The classification of financial assets depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired or originated. The Company 
classifies its financial assets into the following categories: 

� Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;

� Available-for-sale financial assets ;

� Loans and receivables, and

� Held-to-maturity investments.

The Company’s financial assets include cash and short-term deposits, trade and other receivables, commercial loans, quoted and unquoted 
equity instruments, bonds and debt notes.

The Company’s financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities. They include: investment contract liabilities, creditors and 
accruals.

7.1 Classification

(a)  Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading. Financial assets classified as trading are acquired 
principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term.

These investments are initially recorded at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are re-measured at fair value, with gains and 
losses arising from changes in this value recognised in the income statement in the period in which they arise. The fair values of quoted 
investments in active markets are based on current bid prices. The fair values of unquoted equities, and quoted equities for which there 
is no active market, are established using valuation techniques corroborated by independent third parties. These may include reference to 
the current fair value of other instruments that are substantially the same and discounted cash flow analysis.

Interest earned and dividends received while holding trading assets at fair value through profit or loss are included in investment income.
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(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include equity and debt securities. The Company classifies as available-for-sale, those financial assets 
that are generally not designated as another category of financial assets, and strategic capital investments held for an indefinite period of 
time, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value, with the exception of some investments in unquoted equity instruments where 
fair value cannot be reliably determined, which are carried at cost. Fair values are determined in the same manner as for investments at 
fair value through profit or loss. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are 
recognised in other comprehensive income while the investment is held, and are subsequently transferred to the income statement upon 
sale or de-recognition of the investment.

Dividends received on available-for-sale instruments are recognised in income statement when the Company’s right to receive payment 
has been established.

Available-for-sale reserves

The available-for-sale equity reserve represents the unrealised fair value gains and losses in respect of financial assets classified as 
available-for-sale, net taxation where applicable. Gains and losses are deferred in this reserve until such time as the underlying asset is 
sold, matured or becomes impaired.

(c) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables include non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, 
other than those classified by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale.

Loans and advances consist primarily of commercial loans, staff loans and other debtors. These are managed in accordance with a 
documented policy.

Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. Loans granted 
at below market rates are fair valued by reference to expected future cash flows and current market interest rates for instruments in a 
comparable or similar risk class and the difference between the historical cost and fair value is accounted for as employee benefits under 
staff costs.

(d) Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed determinable payments and fixed maturities that Management 
has both the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity other than:

� Those that the Company designates as available-for-sale.

� Those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.  

Such instruments include corporate bonds, government bonds, convertible debt notes and are carried at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest method, less any provisions for impairment.

7.2 Recognition and measurement

Initial measurement

All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value, which includes directly attributable transaction costs for financial instruments 
not classified as at fair value through profit and loss. Financial instruments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from 
the financial instruments have expired or where the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement of financial instruments depends on their classification. Subsequent to initial measurement, financial instruments 
are measured either at fair value or amortised cost, depending on their classification.

7.3 Fair value measurement

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is the transaction price, i.e. the fair value of the 
consideration paid or received, unless the fair value is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the 
same instrument, without modification or repackaging, or based on discounted cash flow models and option pricing valuation techniques 
whose variables include only data from observable markets.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations for 
financial instruments traded in active markets. If the market for a financial asset is not active or the instrument is an unlisted instrument, 
the fair value is determined by using applicable valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted 
cash flow analyses, pricing models and valuation techniques commonly used by market participants.

Where discounted cash flow analyses are used, estimated cash flows are based on Management’s best estimates and the discount rate is 
a market-related rate at the balance sheet date from a financial asset with similar terms and conditions.

Where pricing models are used, inputs are based on observable market indicators at the balance sheet date and profits or losses are only 
recognised to the extent that they relate to changes in factors that market participants will consider in a setting price.

8 RECLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets other than loans and receivables are permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading category only in rare 
circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual and highly unlikely to reoccur in the near-term. In addition, the Company 
may choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet the definition of loans and receivables out of available-for-sale categories 
if the Company has the intention and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of 
reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and 
no reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded before reclassification date are subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial 
assets reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases 
in estimates of cash flows adjust effective interest rates prospectively.

9 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The carrying amounts of these assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence of 
impairment. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events that have occurred 
since the initial recognition of the asset have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset and can be reliably 
estimated. For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists 
individually for financial assets that are individually significant and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually 
significant. Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis.

The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. An impairment loss in respect 
of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying value and the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Available-for-sale financial assets are impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment, resulting from one or more loss events that 
occurred after initial recognition but before the balance sheet date, that have an impact on the future cash flows of the asset.

All impairment losses are recognised through profit or loss.  If any loss on the financial asset was previously recognised directly in equity 
as a reduction in fair value, the cumulative net loss that had been recognised in equity is transferred to the income statement and is 
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recognised as part of the impairment loss. The amount of the loss recognised in the income statement is the difference between the 
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any previously recognised impairment loss.

Subsequent decreases in the amount relating to an impairment loss, that can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the 
impairment loss was recognised in the income statement, is reversed through the income statement. An impairment loss in respect of 
an equity instrument classified as available-for-sale is not reversed through the income statement but accounted for directly in equity.

10 DE-RECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial asset is de-recognised when the contractual rights of the Company to the cash flows from the asset expire, or its rights to 
receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset are transferred, or when it assumes an obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more recipients, subject to 
certain criteria.

Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Company de-recognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.

11 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment. A 
provision for impairment is made when there is an objective evidence (such as the probability of solvency or significant financial difficulties 
of the debtors) that the Company will not be able to collect all the amount due under the original terms of the invoice. Allowances are 
made based on an impairment model which consider the loss given default for each customer, probability of default for the sectors in 
which the customer belongs and emergence period which serves as an impairment trigger based on the age of the debt. Impaired debts 
are de-recognised when they are assessed as uncollectible. If in a subsequent period the amount of the impairment loss decreases and 
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previous recognised impairment 
loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversed date. Any subsequent 
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss.

12 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Other receivables and prepayments are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

13 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are considered to be impaired when there exists any indication that the asset’s 
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairments or losses of non-financial assets, related claims for or payments of compensation from third parties and any subsequent 
purchase or construction of replacement assets are separate economic events and are accounted for separately.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no 
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An 
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Reversals of impairment losses are recognised 
in profit or loss.
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14 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities are set-off and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the 
Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment property comprises investment in land or buildings held primarily to earn rentals or capital appreciation or both.

Investment property is initially recognised at cost including transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part 
of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes cost of day-to-day 
servicing of an investment property.

An investment property is subsequently measured at fair value with any change therein recognised in profit or loss. Fair values are 
determined individually, on a basis appropriate to the purpose for which the property is intended and with regard to recent market 
transactions for similar properties in the same location.

Fair values are reviewed annually by independent valuer, holding a recognised and relevant professional qualification and with relevant 
experience in the location and category of investment property being valued. Any gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value is 
recognised in the income statement.

Subsequent expenditure on investment property is capitalised only if future economic benefit will flow to the Company; otherwise they 
are expensed as incurred.

Investment properties are disclosed separate from the property and equipment used for the purposes of the business.

The Company separately accounts for a dual purpose property as investment property if it occupies only an insignificant portion. Otherwise, 
the portion occupied by the Company is treated as property plant and equipment.

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Recognition of software acquired is only allowed if it is probable that future economic benefits to this intangible asset are attributable and 
will flow to the Company.

Software acquired is initially measured at cost. The cost of acquired software comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and 
non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly attributable expenditure on preparing the asset for its intended use. After initial recognition, 
software acquired is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Maintenance costs 
should not be included.

Internally developed software is capitalised when the Company has the intention and demonstrates the ability to complete the development 
and use of the software in a manner that will generate future economic benefits, and can reliably measure the costs to complete the 
development. The capitalised costs include all costs directly attributable to the development of the software. Internally developed software 
is stated at capitalised cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific 
asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred. Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis 
over the estimated useful life of the software, from the date that it is available-for-use. The estimated useful life of software is three 
years subject to annual reassessment.
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment comprise land and buildings and other properties owned by the Company.

Items of property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that 
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  All 
other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the profit and loss account during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Subsequent costs on replacement parts on an item of property are recognised in the carrying amount of the asset and the carrying amount 
of the replaced or renewed component is de-recognised.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on property, plant and equipment on the straight line basis to write down the cost of each asset to its residual 
value over its estimated useful life, land is not depreciated. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each 
reporting date.

Depreciation reduces an asset’s carrying value to its residual value at the end of its useful life, and is allocated on a straight line basis 
over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings    -  2%
Office equipment   -  20%
Computer hardware  -  33.33%
Furniture and fittings  -  20%
Motor vehicles   -  25%

De-recognition
Upon disposal of any item of property, plant and equipment or when no future economic benefits are expected to flow from its use, such 
items are de-recognised from the books. Gains and losses on disposal of assets are determined by comparing proceeds with their carrying 
amounts and are recognised in the income statement in the year of de-recognition.

18 STATUTORY DEPOSIT

This represents 10% of the paid up capital of the Company deposited with the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) in pursuant to Section 10(3) 
of the Insurance Act, 2003. Statutory deposit is measured at cost.

19 INSURANCE CONTRACTS

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. Contracts under which the Company accepts significant 
insurance risk from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder or other beneficiary if a specified 
uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder or other beneficiary are classified as insurance contracts. 
Insurance risk is risk other than financial risk, transferred from the holder of the contract to the issuer.
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(a) Classification of insurance contracts
Insurance contracts are accident and casualty, special risks and property insurance contracts which protect the Company’s customers 
against the risk of causing harm to third parties as a result of their legitimate activities. Damages covered include both contractual and 
non-contractual events. The typical protection offered is designed for employers who become legally liable to pay compensation to a third 
party for bodily harm or property damage (public liability).

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customer for damage suffered to their properties or for the value of 
property lost. Customers who undertake commercial activities on their premises could also receive compensation for the loss of earnings 
caused by the inability to use the insured properties in their business activities.

The insurance contracts protect the Company’s customers from the consequences of events (such as death or disability) that would 
affect the ability of the customer or his/her dependents to maintain their current level of income. Guaranteed benefits paid on occurrence 
of the specified insurance events are either fixed or linked to the extent of the economic loss suffered by the policyholder. There are no 
maturity or surrender benefits.

(b) Recognition and measurement of insurance contracts

(i) Gross Premiums

Gross premiums comprise the premiums on insurance contracts entered into during the year, irrespective of whether they relate in whole 
or in part to a later accounting period. The earned portion of premiums received is recognised as revenue. Premiums are earned from the 
date of attachment of risk, over the indemnity period, based on the pattern of risk underwritten. Premiums are shown before deduction 
of commission.

Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same accounting period as the premiums for the related direct insurance or 
reinsurance business assumed. Outward reinsurance premiums are recognised as an expense in accordance with the pattern of indemnity 
received.

(ii) Unearned premiums

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in the year that relate to periods of risks after the reporting date. It is 
computed separately for each insurance contract using actuarially determined liabilities by the actuary. Provision for unexpired risk is made 
for unexpired risks arising where the expected value of claims and expenses attributable to the unexpired period of policies in force at the 
reporting date exceeds the unearned premium in relation to such policies after deduction of any deferred acquisition costs. Specifically, 
provision for unexpired risk is based on time appointment basis.

(iii) Deferred acquisition costs

Acquisition costs comprise insurance commissions and other related expenses arising from the generation and conclusion of insurance 
contracts. The proportion of acquisition costs that correspond to the unearned premiums are deferred as an asset and recognised in the 
subsequent period. They are recognised on a basis consistent with the related provisions for unearned premiums.

(iv) Deferred income

Deferred income represents a proportion of commission received on reinsurance contracts which are booked during a financial year and 
are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable out of future revenue margins.

(v) Reinsurance contracts

The Company cedes reinsurance in the normal course of business for the purpose of limiting its net loss potential on policies written. 
Premium ceded comprise written premiums ceded to reinsurers, adjusted for the reinsurers’ share of the movement in the provision for the 
unearned premiums. Reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its direct obligations to its policyholders.

Reinsurance expenses, and commission received are presented in the income statement separately from the gross amounts.

Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance contracts. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance 
contracts and are recognised as an expense when due.
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Reinsurance recoverable are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and claims incurred associated 
with the reinsurer’s policies and are in accordance with the related insurance contract. They are measured at their carrying amount less 
impairment charges. Amounts recoverable under reinsurance contracts are assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. If there 
is objective evidence of impairment, the Company reduces the carrying amount of its insurance assets to its recoverable amount and 
recognises the impairment loss in the income statement as a result of an event that occurred after its initial recognition, that the Company 
may not recover all amounts due and that the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from 
the reinsurer.

(vi) Commission income

Commission income is recognised on ceding business to the re-assurer, and is credited to the profit and loss account.

(vii) Claims

Claims consist of claims and claims handling expenses paid during the financial year. This is charged to the income as incurred based on 
the estimated liability for compensation owed to policy contract holders or third parties damaged by the policy contract holders.

The provision for outstanding claims represent the Company’s estimate of the ultimate cost of settling all claims incurred but unpaid at 
the balance sheet date whether reported or not. The provision includes an allowance for claims management and handling expenses. The 
Company does not discount its liability for unpaid claims.

The provision for outstanding claims for reported claims is estimated based on current information and the ultimate liability may vary as 
a result of subsequent information and events and may result in significant adjustments to the amounts provided. Adjustments to the 
amounts of claims provision for prior years are reflected in the income statement in the financial period in which adjustments are made, 
and disclosed separately if material.

(viii) Underwriting expenses

Underwriting expenses are made up of acquisition and other underwriting expenses. Acquisition costs comprise all direct and indirect 
costs arising from the writing of insurance contracts, these include but not limited to commission expenses, superintending fees and other 
technical fees.

Underwriting expenses for insurance contracts is recognised as expenses when incurred and they are charged in the accounting year in 
which they are incurred.

(ix) Liabilities and related assets under liability adequacy test

The net liability for insurance contracts is tested for adequacy by discounting current estimates of all future contractual cash flows and 
comparing this amount to the carrying value of the liability net of deferred acquisition costs. Where a shortfall is identified, an additional 
provision is made and the Company recognises the deficiency in the income statement for the year.

20 TECHNICAL RESERVES

These are the reserves computed in compliance with the provision of Section 20, 21, and 22 of the Insurance Act 2003. They are:

General insurance contracts

(a) Reserves for unearned premium

Unearned premium is calculated in compliance with Section 20 (1) (a) of Insurance Act 2003 on a time apportionment basis in respect 
of the risks accepted during the year.

(b) Reserves for outstanding claims

The reserve for outstanding claims is maintained at the total amount of outstanding claims incurred and reported plus claims incurred but 
not reported (IBNR) which is based on the liability adequacy test as at balance sheet data (see note 54).
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(c) Reserves for unexpired risk

A provision for additional unexpired risk reserve (AURR) is recognised for an underwriting year where it is envisaged that the estimated 
cost of claims and expenses would exceed the unearned premium reserve (UPR).

Hypothecation of assets
The Company has a practice to hypothecate its assets into insurance and shareholders’ fund where funds are combined to acquire such 
assets.

21 PROVISIONS AND OTHER PAYABLES
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated 
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.

Other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
The fair value of a non-interest bearing liability is its discounted repayment amount. If the due date of the liability is not up to one year, 
discounting is omitted.

22 CURRENT INCOME TAX
Current income tax expense is recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in 
equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance 
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

23 DEFERRED TAX
Deferred taxation, which arises from timing differences in the recognition of items for accounting and tax purposes, is calculated using 
the liability method.  Deferred taxation is provided fully on timing differences, which are expected to reverse at the rate of tax likely to be 
in force at the time of reversal.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the associated 
unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that 
is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to 
the extent that they probably will not reverse in the foreseeable future and differences arising from investment property measured at fair 
value whose carrying amount will be recovered through use. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time as the liability to pay the related 
dividend is recognised.

24 SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM
The Company classifies ordinary shares and share premium as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets.

Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of shares are recognised as deductions from equity net of any tax effects.

25 CONTINGENCY RESERVES
The Company maintains contingency reserves in accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Act 2003 (section 21 (2)) to cover 
fluctuations in securities and variations in statistical estimates at the rate equal to the higher of 3% of total premium or 20% of the 
total profit after taxation until the reserve reaches the greater of minimum paid up capital or 50% of net premium for general business.
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26 EARNINGS PER SHARE
The Company presents basic earnings per share for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable 
to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the number of shares outstanding during the year.

Adjusted earnings per share is determined by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares adjusted for the bonus shares issued.

27 ASSET REVALUATION RESERVES
Revaluation gains recognised on valuation of property, plant and equipment, basically land and buildings, are credited to assets revaluation reserves. 
When the revaluation gains are realised, they are credited to profit or loss from asset revaluation reserves.

28 DIVIDENDS
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period in which the dividends are 
approved by the Company’s shareholders. Dividends that are proposed but not yet declared are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Dividends on the Company’s ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are paid or, if earlier, approved by the Company’s 
shareholders.

29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or the Company has a present obligation as a 
result of past events which is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; or 
the amount cannot be reliably estimated. Contingent liabilities normally comprise of legal claims under arbitration or court process in respect of 
which a liability is not likely to crystallise.

30 REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue comprises the fair value for services, net of value added tax. Revenue is recognised as follows: 
     
(a) Rendering of services
Revenue arising from assets management and other related services offered by the Company are recognised in the accounting period in which 
the services are rendered. 
  
(b) Premium income
Premium income are recognised as revenue (earned premiums) proportionally over the period of coverage. The portion of premium received on 
in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the balance sheet date is reported as the unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown 
before deduction of commission and are gross of any taxes or duties levied on premiums. 
  
(c) Interest income and expenses
Interest income and expenses for all interest-bearing financial instruments, including financial instruments measured at fair value through profit 
and loss, are recognised within investment income in the income statement using the effective interest rate method. When a receivable is 
impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original 
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income is accounted for on a time 
proportionate basis that takes into account the effective interest rate on the asset.

(d) Fees and commission income
Unless included in the effective interest calculation, fees and commissions are recognised on an accruals basis as the service is provided. Fees 
consist primarily of investment management fees, surrenders and other contract fees arising from services rendered in conjunction with the issue 
and management of investment contracts where the Company actively manages the consideration received from its customers to fund a return 
that is based on the investment profile that the customer selected on origination of the instrument

These services comprise the activity of trading financial assets in order to reproduce the contractual returns that the Company’s customers expect 
to receive from their investments. Such activities generate revenue that is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contractual 
services.
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
 Note N’000  N’000

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalent 2 344,268 293,252

Financial assets 3 2,858,969 2,493,191

Trade receivables 4 21,210 30,188

Reinsurance assets 5  818,580 651,659 

Deferred acquisition cost 6 132,297 85,798

Other receivables and prepayments 7 295,220 86,610 

Investment properties 8 105,000 320,225

Property, plant and equipment 9 1,120,125 1,077,518

Intangible assets 10 67,235 -

Statutory deposits 11 300,000 300,000

Total assets  6,062,904 5,338,441

LIABILITIES
Insurance contract liabilities 12 1,614,318 1,142,450

Trade payables 13 46,465 34,713

Provision and other payables 14 213,262 131,260

Income tax liabilities 15 31,278 26,302

Deferred tax liabilities 16 52,922 24,829

Total liabilities  1,958,245 1,359,554

EQUITY
Paid-up share capital 17 3,751,753 3,751,753

Share premium 18 410,961 410,961

Contingency reserve 19 484,894 419,096

Retained earnings 20 (984,014) (1,051,009)

Available-for-sale reserves 21 (76,068) (69,047)

Asset revaluation surplus 22 517,133 517,133

Total equity  4,104,659 3,978,887

Total liabilities and equity  6,062,904 5,338,441

These Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 February, 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

Olugbenga Shobo     Bode Opadokun    Modupe Akinwande
Chairman     Chief Executive Officer   Head, Finance 
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000002330   FRC/2014/CIIN/00000008646  FRC/2016/ICAN/00000013711

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this Financial Statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
 Note N’000  N’000

Gross premium written 23 2,193,274 1,811,112

Gross premium income 24 1,957,669 1,869,296

Reinsurance premium expenses 25 (859,235) (742,893)

Net premium income  1,098,434 1,126,403

Fee and commission income - insurance contracts  26 115,977 115,402

Net underwriting income  1,214,411 1,241,805

Claims expenses 27 (269,967) (205,271)

Underwriting expenses 28 (381,375) (379,359)

Underwriting profit  563,069 657,175

Investment income  29 321,902 277,805

Net realised gains/(loss) on financial assets 30 77,713 (261)

Net fair value (loss)/gains 31 (26,634) 14,191

Other operating income 32 125,022 (6,381)

Net operating income  1,061,072 942,529

Employee benefit expenses 33 (460,355) (404,467)

Other operating and administrative expenses 34 (398,641) (303,278)

Impairment 35 (7,415) -

Profit before tax  194,661 234,784

Income tax expense 36 (61,868) (46,206)

Profit after tax  132,793 188,578

Other comprehensive income, net of tax 
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
(a) Net fair value loss on available-for-sale financial assets  (7,021) (92,979)

(b) Income tax credit relating to loss arising 

 from available-for-sale financial assets 21 - 27,894

Total other comprehensive loss for the year net of tax  (7,021) (65,085)

Total comprehensive income for the year  125,772 123,493
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

     Asset  Available-
  Issued Share Contingency revaluation  Retained for-sale Total
  capital premium reserve surplus earnings  reserves equity
  N’000  N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

Balance at 1 January 2015 3,251,753 410,961 364,763 517,133 (1,185,254) (3,962) 3,355,394

Profit after tax - - - - 188,578 - 188,578

Other comprehensive loss for 

the year, net of income tax - - - - - (65,085) (65,085)

Total comprehensive income - - - - 188,578 (65,085) 123,493

Issues of shares 500,000 - - - - - 500,000

Transfer from retained earnings - - 54,333 - (54,333) - -

Balance at 31 December 2015 3,751,753 410,961 419,096 517,133 (1,051,009) (69,047) 3,978,887

Profit after tax - - - - 132,793 - 132,793
Other comprehensive loss for 

the year, net of income tax - - - - - (7,021) (7,021)
Total comprehensive income - - - - 132,793 (7,021) 125,772
Transfer from retained earnings - - 65,798 - (65,798) - -
Balance at 31 December 2016 3,751,753 410,961 484,894 517,133 (984,014) (76,068) 4,104,659
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Premiums received from policyholders                      2,188,595 1,565,119

Re-insurance receipt in respect of claims                   486,024 142,824

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees                   (457,387) (361,522)

Reinsurance premium paid                                       (835,858) (589,532)

Interest on investment                                            284,565 270,646

Dividend received                                                   12,172 7,160

Fees and commission income received 179,256 (6,380)

Claims paid                                                            (680,581) (398,229)

Other operating expenses paid                                (469,583) (234,684)

Commission paid (acquisition)                                                    (384,842) (53,697)

Maintenance expenses paid during the year (43,032) (21,288)

Tax paid                                                                (28,799) (110,025)

Net cash generated by operating activities 250,530 210,392

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of financial assets FVTP/L (15,415) -

Proceed from disposal of financial assets FVTP/L 1,929,466 18,847

Addition to financial assets – loans and receivable (353,263) -

Purchase of financial assets AFS (2,083,374) (665,107)

Proceed from disposal of financial assets AFS 231,385 -

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (96,730) (91,135)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 6,159 6,746

Proceed from disposal of investment property 250,000 -

Addition and capital improvement to investment properties (11,649) -

Purchase of intangible assets (56,093) -

Net cash used in investing activities (199,514) (730,649)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceed from issue of share - 500,000

Net cash flow generated by  financing activities - 500,000

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 51,016 (20,257)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 293,252 313,509

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 344,268 293,252
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1 LEGAL FORM

FBN General Insurance Limited, (formerly Oasis Insurance Company Limited) was incorporated on November 9, 1992 to carry on 
insurance business. It changed its name to Oasis Insurance Plc on November 26, 2004 following the successful listing of its shares on 
the Nigeria Stock Exchange. Oasis Insurance Plc was acquired by FBN Insurance Limited during the year 2014, and delisted its shares 
on the Nigerian Stock Exchange. The Company is now a subsidiary of FBN Insurance Limited (a member of FBN holdings).

The Company’s registered office address is 298, Ikorodu Road, Anthony, Lagos.

The accounting policies of the Company is stated on pages 42 to 61.

2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Cash and bank balances  155,410 177,749

Short-term deposits 188,858 115,503

  344,268 293,252

Current 344,268 293,252

Non-current - -

  344,268 293,252

Of the cash and cash equivalent, the following relates to insurance funds:
Policyholders’ funds 289,811 205,648

Shareholders funds 54,457 87,604

  344,268 293,252

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalent approximates fair value. Short-term deposits are various deposits with commercial banks 
for varying period of one to ninety days (1 - 90 days), depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company. 
        
The effective interest rate on short-term deposits range from 6% to 14%. The cash and bank balances are the current account balances 
of the Company.
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3 FINANCIAL ASSETS

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Categories of financial instruments
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 17,107 1,979,457

Available-for-sale 2,483,025 513,734

Loans and receivables  358,837 -

  2,858,969 2,493,191

Current 2,492,621 1,979,457

Non-current 366,348 513,734

  2,858,969 2,493,191

Movement in financial assets at FVTPL
At 1 January 1,979,457 48,408

Addition during the year 15,415 1,951,293

Disposal during the year (1,929,584) (15,219)

Reclassification during the year (33,303) -

Foreign exchange revaluation changes 6,756 -

Fair value losses (21,634) (5,025)

At 31 December 17,107 1,979,457

Movement in loans and receivables
At 1 January - -

Addition during the year 353,263 518,729

Redemption during the year - (518,729)

Accrued interest 5,574 -

At 31 December 358,837 -

Movement in available-for-sale
At 1 January 513,734 1,908,531

Addition during the year 2,083,374 4,531,491

Disposal during the year (140,365) (5,829,347)

Reclassification during the year 33,303 -

Fair value changes in other comprehensive income (7,021) (96,941)

At 31 December 2,483,025 513,734

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
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The table below compares the fair values of the financial instruments to their carrying values:

  31 Dec 2016  31 Dec 2015
  Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
  N’000  N’000 N’000 N’000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 16,727 17,107 1,962,529 1,979,457

Available-for-sale 2,586,987 2,483,025 610,675 513,734

Loans and receivables 358,837 358,837 - -

Total financial assets 2,962,551 2,858,969 2,573,204 2,493,191

Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss is made up of:

  31 Dec 2016  31 Dec 2015
  Originally Originally Originally Originally
  designated designated designated designated
  carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
  N’000  N’000 N’000 N’000

Quoted stock   6,727 17,107 44,391 39,366

    2016  2015
    Held for Held for Held for Held for
    trading trading trading trading
    carrying mark-to- carrying mark-to-
  Tenor Maturity date amount market amount market
    N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

Treasury bills  6 months  16 June 2016  - - 367,188 366,952

Treasury bills  12 months   1 September 2016  - - 1,334,618 1,358,117

13.95% FGN Bonds  9 months   16 August 2016  - - 216,332 215,023

    - - 1,918,138 1,940,092

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 16,727 17,107 1,962,529 1,979,457
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Available-for-sale financial assets in 2015 is made up of:

  Available-for-sale Mark-to-market Movement to OCI 
  N’000  N’000 N’000

Unquoted stocks 610,675 513,734 96,941

Realised loss to income statement - - (3,962)

  610,675 513,734 92,979

Loans and receivables assets in 2016 is made up of:

  Tenor Maturity date Face value Amortised cost 
    N’000 N’000

Loan and receivables
Commercial paper < 6 months   24 May 2017  149,350 137,765
Commercial paper < 6 months   30 January 2017  61,915 61,619
Commercial paper < 6 months   7 April 2017  162,522 159,453
    373,787 358,837

Available-for-sale financial assets in 2016 is made up of:

  Tenor Maturity date Available for-sale Mark-to-market Movement to OCI  
    N’000 N’000 N’000

Unquoted stocks - - 501,104 399,652 101,453
Treasury bills  6 months 16 February 2017 493,393 498,233 (4,841)
Treasury bills  12 months 26 October 2017 1,592,490 1,585,140 7,350
    2,586,987 2,483,025 103,962
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

The Company is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets (investments and loans). The key focus of financial risk management 
for the Company is to ensure that the proceeds from financial asset are sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance 
operations. The most important components of financial risk, market risk arises from open positions in interest rate, fluctuations in 
stock prices, inflation, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movement and/or conditions.
        
Investments above ninety-one days are classified as part of financial assets of the Company.

All financial instruments are initially recorded at transaction price. Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair values of financial 
instruments are measured at fair values that are quoted in an active market. When quoted prices are not available, fair value are 
determined by using valuation techniques that refer as far as possible to observable market data. These are compared with similar 
instruments where market observable prices exist.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is made up of financial assets designated on initial recognition (quoted equities) and 
held for trading financial assets which are treasury bills.

The realised gain or loss arising from the sale of treasury bills was transferred to the income statement.
        
Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value on mark-to-market basis in 2016. 
        
Loans and receivables are carried at their amortised cost in 2016.
 
Of the financial assets, the following relates to insurance funds:

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Policyholders funds 1,918,093 1,148,588

Shareholders funds 940,876 1,344,603

  2,858,969 2,493,191

4 TRADE RECEIVABLES

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Premium receivable from brokers 21,210 30,188

Current 21,210 30,188

Non-current - -

Trade receivables are debtors relating to insurance only. All the trade receivables are approximately one month old and are backed-up 
with credit notes.
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5 REINSURANCE ASSETS

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Prepaid reinsurance 308,076 302,009

Reinsurance share of outstanding claims 394,861 244,316

Reinsurance share of IBNR 104,120 105,334

Reinsurance share of claims paid but not yet recovered 11,523 -

  818,580 651,659

5a Movement in reinsurance assets

   Minimum   Reinsurance
   and deposit Reinsurance  share of
   insurance share of Reinsurance claims paid
  Prepaid premium outstanding share of but not yet
31 Dec 2016 reinsurance prepaid claims IBNR recovered
  N’000  N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

At 1 January 274,609 27,400 244,316 105,334 -
Addition during the year - 25,750 - - 497,547
Payment received from reinsurance 

in respect of claim during the year - - - - (486,024)
Changes during the year 7,717 (27,400) 150,545 (1,214) -
At 31 December 282,326 25,750 394,861 104,120 11,523

   Minimum   Reinsurance
   and deposit Reinsurance  share of
   insurance share of Reinsurance claims paid
  Prepaid premium outstanding share of but not yet
31 Dec 2015 reinsurance prepaid claims IBNR recovered
  N’000  N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

At 1 January 411,978 27,400 103,360 66,385 -   

Addition during the year - 27,400 - - - 

Changes during the year (137,369) (27,400) 140,956 38,949 -

At 31 December 274,609 27,400 244,316 105,334 -
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(i) Reinsurance receivables are to be settled on demand and the carrying amount is equal to the fair value.

(ii) The balance on re-insurance recoveries are set-off against payables from retrocession at the end of every quarter.

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Current 774,811 420,875

Non-current 18,019 203,384

  792,830 624,259

6 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COST
  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

At 1 January 85,798 109,457
Acquisition cost paid during the year 384,842 334,412
Amortised during the year (338,343) (358,071)
At 31 December 132,297 85,798

Current 132,297 85,798
Non-current - -

Deferred acquisition cost relates commission expense on unearned premium which was measured on time apportionment basis covering 
the policy period.

7 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Prepaid rent 524 944
Prepaid insurance - 1,145
Health insurance and dividend receivable - 1,469
Deposit for software license/assets WIP (note 7.1) 38,293 83,052
Staff advances 4,005 -
Proceeds receivable on disposal of Investments (note 7.2) 241,875 -
Due from related party (note 7.3) 10,216 -
Sundry receivables (note 7.4) 7,722 -
  302,635 86,610
Impairment allowance (7,415) -
  295,220 86,610

Current 295,220 86,610
Non-current - -
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7.1 Movement in deposit for software license

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

At 1 January 83,052 -

Addition during the year 56,093 83,052

Capitalised during the year (100,852) -

At 31 December 38,293 83,052

Deposit for software license - The Company is in a process of acquiring three (3) different software licenses; these are Premia 11 module, 
Business intelligent module and E-portal module. The sum of N83m deposited for Premia 11 in 2015 together with additional payment 
of N17.8m had been capitalised during the year and the software is currently in use. The arrangement for additional two (2) licenses 
started in 2016 of which deposit of N38m were made in 2016 as deposit for software license for the vendor to commence the process 
of assembly and development of Business Intelligent and E-portal modules of the entity’s application software.

7.2 Proceed receivable from disposal of investment relates to  the following:  N’000
Sale of AIICO pension shares (7.2.1)  204,000

Recovery on funds in Nigeria Oil and Energy pool funds (7.2.2)  22,875

Sale of investment property (7.2.3)  15,000

   241,875

7.2.1 Sale of AIICO Pension shares relates to the disposal of 120,000 units of shares for the sum of N204m. The money has been 
fully paid as at the time of this report. 

7.2.2 Recovery of funds in Nigeria Oil and Energy pool funds represents recovery of N22.8m expected from the custodian of Nigeria 
Oil and Energy pool investment. Nigeria Oil and Energy pool fund is contributed by some insurance companies for oil and gas business. 
It was however resolved in 2016 that the fund should be returned to the contributor. The sum of N13.7m has been received from the 
custodian/promoter of Nigeria Oil and Energy pool at the time of this report. 

7.2.3  Sale of investment property represents outstanding proceeds receivable from the disposal of the entity’s investment property 
located at Trojan Estate, Ajah, Lagos. This amount has been received by the buyer at the time of this report.

7.3  Due from related party

The receivable from FBN Insurance is the premium paid on businesses underwritten by FBN General paid to FBN Insurance on our behalf 
by Custodian and Allied Insurance. The full amount of N10.2m has been received from FBN Insurance Limited at the time of this report.

7.4  Sundry receivable

Included in sundry receivable is the sum of N7,415,000 with Resort Savings and loans Plc. The money is due for re-payment but the 
clients could not honor the agreement terms on liquidation at maturity for more than six months. However, the Management is making all 
efforts possible in ensuring the fund is recovered.
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8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

At 1 January 320,225 322,000

Additions and capital improvements 11,649 960

Disposal during the year (note 8.1) (221,874) -

Fair value loss on revaluation (5,000) (2,735)

At 31 December 105,000 320,225

Current - -

Non-current 105,000 320,225

Of the investment properties, the following relates to insurance funds:
Policyholders funds - 82,553

Shareholders’ funds 105,000 237,672

  105,000 320,225

    2016     2015
     Fair value    Fair value

  1-Jan Addition Disposal adjustments 31-Dec 1-Jan Addition adjustments 31-Dec 
Description of properties N’000  N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

Five undeveloped plot of 

land located at Saba 

Crescent and Elegushi 

close, off Obi road, 

Royal Garden Estate, 

Ajah, Lekki 210,225 11,649 (221,874) - - 202,000 960 7,265 210,225

Block of two units of 

three -bedroom flats 

and two units of two 

bedroom flats situated 

at No 9 (plot No. 194), 

Makeni Street, Zone 6, 

Wuse Abuja, FCT 110,000 - - (5,000) 105,000 120,000 - (10,000) 110,000

Total  320,225 11,649 (221,874) (5,000) 105,000 322,000 960 (2,375) 320,225

The properties were valued by Jide Taiwo & Co., Estate surveyors & Valuers, a registered member of Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria 
(FRCN/2012/0000000000254), in December, 2016 on the basis of determining the open market value of the investment properties. The open market 
value of all the properties were determined using recent comparable market prices. The properties are located in Abuja. The next valuation is schedule for 
31 December 2017.

The properties are held for long-term capital appreciation and rental income. There is no rental income arising from a property owned by the Company in 
2016 (2015: nil). No administrative charge in 2016 (2015: nil).
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     Furniture  Machine  Computer  
   Land Building  Motor  and fittings  and equipment   hardware Total
2016 N’000  N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

Cost:
At 1 January 434,594 654,102 89,868 45,286 81,444 22,456 1,327,750
Additions - 5,915 67,834 1,303 9,041 12,637 96,730
Disposal - - (30,174) (10,219) (2,620) - (43,013)
At 31 December 434,594 660,017 127,528 36,370 87,865 35,093 1,381,467

Depreciation:
At 1 January - 86,310 85,294 26,658 32,140 19,830 250,232
Charge for the year - 13,173 15,486 7,509 12,173 4,037 52,378
Disposals - - (29,801) (8,847) (2,620) - (41,268)
At 31 December - 99,483 70,979 25,320 41,693 23,867 261,342

Carrying amount at end of year:        

At 31 December 434,594 560,534 56,549 11,050 46,172 11,226 1,120,125

     Furniture  Machine  Computer  
   Land Building  Motor  and fittings  and equipment   hardware Total
2015 N’000  N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

Cost:
At 1 January 434,594 633,461 126,675 27,741 28,740 22,211 1,273,422

Additions - 20,641 - 17,545 52,704 245 91,135

Disposal - - (36,808) - - - (36,808)

At 31 December 434,594 654,102 89,868 45,286 81,444 22,456 1,327,750

Depreciation:
At 1 January - 73,443 106,945 20,247 25,265 18,482 244,382

Charge for the year - 12,867 13,183 6,411 6,875 1,348 40,684

Disposals - - (34,834) - - - (34,834)

At 31 December - 86,310 85,294 26,658 32,140 19,830 250,232

Carrying amount at end of year:
At 31 December 434,594 567,792 4,574 18,628 49,304 2,626 1,077,518

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Current - -

Non-current 1,120,125 1,077,518

  1,120,125 1,077,518

Property, plant and equipment are carried at deemed cost. Fixed asset register is available for inspection at the Company’s registered 
office. The properties are located in Lagos (Ikorodu Road, Anthony), Abuja (Garki) and Oshogbo (Sabo). The additions to building is the 
cost incurred on renovation of property located in Lagos (Ikorodu Road, Anthony).

9.1a Impairment losses recognised in the year

Impairment losses recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment in the year 2016 was Nil (2015: Nil).

9.1b Contractual commitments

At 31 December 2016, the Company had no contractual commitments for the acquisition/renovation of property, plant and equipment 
(2015: Nil).

10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Software expenditure
At 1 January 22,205 22,205

Addition during the year 100,852 -

At 31 December 123,057 22,205

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 22,205 17,764

Charged during the year 33,617 4,441

At 31 December 55,822 22,205

Carrying amount 67,235 -

Current - -

Non-current 67,235 -

  67,235 -

The cost is amortised over the period of three years which is in line with that of parent company policy - FBN Insurance Limited.
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11 STATUTORY DEPOSIT

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Statutory deposit 300,000 300,000

Current - -

Non-current 300,000 300,000

This represent the amount held with the Central Bank of Nigeria in accordance with Section 10(3) of the insurance Act 2003. The 
deposit is not available for the day-to-day operations of the Company. The Central Bank however pays bi-annual interest on the deposit 
and the effective average rate stood at 11% per annum in 2016.

12 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Reserves for unearned premium 750,636 515,031

Reserves for outstanding claims 611,368 375,898

Incurred but not reported (IBNR) 252,314 251,521

  1,614,318 1,142,450

Reserves for unearned premium
   Increase/ 
  At 1 Jan, 2016 (Decrease) At 31 Dec, 2016
  N’000 N’000 N’000

Motor 165,654 20,451 186,105

Marine 13,072 37,977 51,049

Bond  2,465 6,380 8,845

Engineering 46,332 13,601 59,933

Fire  86,113 82,670 168,783

General accident 53,904 21,353 75,257

Aviation 16 (16) -

Oil and gas 147,475 53,189 200,664

  515,031 235,605 750,636



78 FBN GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED  Annual Report and Accounts 2016

FINANCIAL STATEMENTSRISK FACTORSGOVERNANCEBUSINESS REVIEWINTRODUCTION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Reserves for outstanding claims
   Increase/ 
  At 1 Jan, 2016 (Decrease) At 31 Dec, 2016
  N’000 N’000 N’000

Motor 39,261 1,990 41,251

Marine 2,450 3,497 5,947

Bond  - - -

Engineering 8,133 2,719 10,852

Fire  204,185 (128,082) 76,103

General accident 88,265 85,723 173,988

Aviation 11,554 (18) 11,536

Oil and gas 22,050 269,641 291,691

Incurred but not reported 251,521 793 252,314

  627,419 236,263 863,682
Total insurance contract liabilities 1,142,450 471,868 1,614,318

  2016 2015
  N’000  N’000

Current 1,516,801 745,337

Non-current 97,517 397,113

12.1 Estimates of incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims liability and calculation of unearned premium was developed by the 
Management of the Company with the use of a professional actuary (Alexander Forbes Financial Services), certified firm of actuaries 
with FRC registration number FRC/2013/00000000000504.

Management believes that the carrying amount of insurance liabilities represents a reasonable approximation of fair value.

13 TRADE PAYABLES

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Amount due to reinsurers 45,438 15,994

Unallocated premium 1,027 14,684

  46,465 30,678

Current 46,465 30,678

Non-current - -

Amount due to reinsurers relate to premium payments on treaty arrangements with our reinsurers.

Other payables relate to professional fees in respect of claims paid to clients and it includes survey and adjuster fees. Also included 
are the direct payments into our accounts without proper description.
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14 PROVISIONS AND OTHER PAYABLES

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Accrued expenses 53,150 66,929

Accrued staff benefits 49,918 42,945

Accrued audit fees 6,000 4,725

WHT and VAT payable 7,709 1,977

Deferred commission revenue (note 26) 63,279 -

Other payables 33,206 18,719

  213,262 135,295

Other payables relate to professional fees in respect of claims paid to clients and it includes survey and adjuster fees. Also included 
are the direct payments into our accounts without proper description.

The carrying value of other liabilities approximates fair value.

Accrued expenses include supervisory levy on premium, actuarial fees and tax consultancy fee.

15 TAX LIABILITIES

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Company income tax payable:

At 1 January 26,302 105,756

Income tax for the year (note 36) 33,775 22,442

Tax paid during the year (28,799) (101,896)

At 31 December 31,278 26,302

16 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

At 1 January 24,829 32,818

Income statement charge (note 36) 28,093 19,905

Deferred tax on available-for-sale financial assets - (27,894)

At 31 December 52,922 24,829
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17  CAPITAL AND RESERVES 
  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Share capital
Authorised share capital:
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 50 kobo each 5,000,000   5,000,000

Issued and fully paid up share capital:
At 1 January 3,751,753 3,251,753

Additions during the year - 500,000

At 31 December 3,751,753 3,751,753

Subject to the restrictions imposed by the companies act, the unissued shares are under the control of Directors.

18 SHARE PREMIUM
  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

At 31 December 410,961 410,961

19 CONTINGENCY RESERVES

In accordance with the Insurance Act, a contingency reserve is credited with the greater of 3% of total premium or 20% of net profit 
(i.e. profit after tax) until the reserve reaches the greater of minimum paid up capital or 50% of net premium for general business.

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

At 1 January 419,096 364,763

Transfer from retained earning 65,798 54,333

At 31 December 484,894 419,096

20 RETAINED EARNINGS

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

At 1 January (1,051,009) (1,185,254)

Profit attributable to owners of the Company 132,793 188,578

Transfer to contingency reserve (65,798) (54,333)

At 31 December (984,014) (1,051,009)



81FBN GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED  Annual Report and Accounts 2016

FINANCIAL STATEMENTSRISK FACTORSGOVERNANCEBUSINESS REVIEWINTRODUCTION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

21 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE RESERVES

The available-for-sale equity reserve represents the unrealised fair value gains and losses in respect of financial assets classified as 
available-for-sale net taxation. Gains and losses are deferred in this reserve until such time as the underlying asset is sold, matured or 

becomes impaired. Below is analysis of available-for-sale reserves into different securities.

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

At 1 January (69,047) (3,962)

Net loss arising from revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets (13,190) (96,941)

Cumulative loss reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of available financial assets 6,169 3,962

  (76,068) (96,941)

Income tax credit relating to loss arising from available-for-sale financial assets - 27,894

   

At 31 December (76,068) (69,047)

22 ASSETS REVALUATION SURPLUS

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

At 31 December 517,133 517,133

23 GROSS PREMIUM WRITTEN

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Direct premium  2,053,844 1,752,520

Inward reinsurance premiums 139,430 58,592

  2,193,274 1,811,112

24 GROSS PREMIUM INCOME

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Gross written premium 2,193,274 1,811,112

(Increase)/decrease in unearned premium (235,605) 58,184

  1,957,669 1,869,296
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25 REINSURANCE PREMIUM EXPENSE
  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Reinsurance premium incurred 839,552 578,124

Change in prepaid reinsurance (7,717) 137,369

  831,835 715,493

Minimum and deposit premium amortised during the year 27,400 27,400

  859,235 742,893

26 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME-INSURANCE CONTRACTS

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Commission income on reinsurance premium 179,256 115,402

Change in deferred commission revenue (note 14) (63,279) -

  115,977 115,402

Commission income on reinsurance premium is as earned on premium ceded out, rate of which varies per product in line with our 

reinsurance agreement with respective reinsurers.

27 CLAIMS EXPENSE
  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Direct claims paid 680,582 398,229

Increase in outstanding claims 236,263 170,907

Claims recoveries (27a) (646,878) (363,865)

Net claims expense 269,967 205,271

27a Analysis of claims recoveries
  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Reinsurance share of claims paid during the year recovered 486,024 11,523

Changes in reinsurance share of claims paid but not yet recovered 183,960 -

Changes in reinsurance share of outstanding claims 150,545 140,956

Changes in reinsurance share of IBNR (1,214) 38,949

Claims recoveries from reinsurance 646,878 363,865
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28 UNDERWRITING EXPENSES

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Acquisition expenses 338,343 358,071

Maintenance cost 43,032 21,288

  381,375 379,359

Analysis of acquisition expenses:
Deferred acquisition cost at 1 January (note 6) 85,798 109,457

Acquisition cost during the year 384,842 334,412

Total acquisition cost for the year 470,640 443,869

Deferred acquisition cost at 31 December (note 6) (132,297) (85,798)

Acquisition cost charged to profit or loss 338,343 358,071

29 INVESTMENT INCOME

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Interest income - bank deposits  46,968 48,178

Interest on treasury bills  240,022 217,088

Interest on bond  9,794 5,379

Interest on commercial papers  13,358 -

Dividend income  11,760 7,160

   321,902 277,805

Investment income attributable to policyholders fund  183,826 175,041

Investment income attributable to shareholders fund  138,076 102,764

   321,902 277,805

30 NET REALISED GAINS/(LOSS) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Realised gain on sales of unquoted equity investments 84,000 -

Realised (loss)/gain on sales of quoted equity securities (118) 3,701

Realised loss on treasury bills reclassified from OCI upon redemption of treasury bills (6,169) (3,962)

  77,713 (261)
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31 NET UNREALISED FAIR VALUE (LOSS)/GAIN

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Fair value loss on quoted equity investment (1,204) (5,026)

Fair value loss on investment properties (5,000) (2,735)

Fair value gain/(loss) on bonds 1,309 (1,309)

Fair value (loss)/gain on treasury bills (21,739) 23,261

  (26,634) 14,191

32 OTHER OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS)

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  4,414 4,772

Unrealised foreign exchange gain/(loss)  77,482 (11,153)

Realised gain on investment property  43,126 -

   125,022 (6,381)

Commission income on reinsurance premium is as earned on premium ceded out, rate of which varies per product in line with our 
reinsurance agreement with respective reinsurers

33 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Wages and salaries 440,346 387,764

Pension cost 20,009 16,703

  460,355 404,467
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34 OTHER OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Directors and Board expenses 52,523 25,864

Staff training 8,986 8,573

Professional fees 64,177 34,646

Depreciation 52,378 40,684

Amortisation of intangible assets 33,617 4,441

Repairs and maintenance 32,521 30,415

Vehicle running/repairs 17,046 9,111

Printing and stationery 16,685 13,197

Advert and publicity 19,423 20,721

Traveling expenses 12,879 12,966

Supervisory levy 14,813 23,788

Rent and rates 24,217 27,764

Audit fees 6,000 4,725

Bank charges 6,781 8,417

Postages and telephone 10,769 9,661

Company/staff subscription 6,125 8,629

Insurance expenses 5,313 4,597

Other administrative expenses 14,388 15,079

  398,641 303,278

35 IMPAIRMENT

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Impairment on other receivables (note 7.4)  (7,415) -
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36 TAXATION

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Analysis of tax charge in the year
Profit before tax as per account 194,661 234,785

Taxable expenses 245,938 65,700

Tax free income (437,678) (229,628)

Taxable profit 2,921 70,857

Income tax minimum 22,721 26,397

Education tax at 2% 175 1,417

Technology tax 1,947 2,348

Capital gains tax 6,435 -

Adjustment to tax charge on prior year tax 2,497 (3,860)

Current tax on income for the year 33,775 26,302

Deferred tax charge ( temporary difference) 28,093 19,904

Tax on profit on ordinary activities 61,868 46,206

Effective tax rate  32% 20%

36b Education tax has been computed at the rate of 2% (2015:2%) on assessable profit for the year.

36c In line with the Nigerian Information Technology Development Agency (NITDA) Act, the Company has provided for technology tax 
at the specified tax rate of 1% (2015: 1%) of the profit before tax for the year.

37 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number 
of ordinary share in issue during the year:

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Profit attributable to equity holders 132,793 188,578

Weighted number of ordinary shares at the end of the year 7,503,506 7,503,506

Basic earnings per share 2kobo 2kobo
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38 HYPOTHECATION

   Shareholders fund
  Policyholders fund 2016 Total

Assets and liabilities representing the funds N’000  N’000 N’000

Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 289,811 54,457 344,268
Financial assets:   

  Treasury bills 1,701,602 381,772 2,083,374
  Other financial assets 216,491 559,104 775,595
Trade receivables  21,210 21,210
Reinsurance assets  818,580 818,580
Deferred acquisition cost  132,297 132,297
Other receivable and prepayments  295,220 295,220
Investment properties  105,000 105,000
Property, plant and equipment  1,120,125 1,120,125
Intangible assets  67,235 67,235
Statutory deposits  300,000 300,000
Total assets 2,207,904 3,855,000 6,062,904

Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 1,614,318 - 1,614,318
Trade payables - 46,465 46,465
Provision and other payables - 213,262 213,262
Income tax liabilities - 31,278 31,278
Deferred tax liabilities - 52,922 52,922
Total liabilities 1,614,318 343,927 1,958,245
Surplus 593,586 3,511,073 4,104,659
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38 HYPOTHECATION

   Shareholders fund
  Policyholders fund 2015 Total

Assets and liabilities representing the funds N’000  N’000 N’000

Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 205,648 87,604 293,252

Financial assets:   

  Treasury bills 848,293 1,091,798 1,940,091

  Other financial assets 300,295 252,805 553,100

Trade receivables  30,188 30,188

Reinsurance assets  651,659 651,659

Deferred acquisition cost  85,798 85,798

Other receivable and prepayments  86,610 86,610

Investment properties 82,553 237,672 320,225

Property, plant and equipment  1,077,518 1,077,518

Statutory deposits  300,000 300,000

Total assets 1,436,789 3,901,652 5,338,441

Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 1,142,450 - 1,142,450

Trade payables - 34,713 34,713

Provision and other payables - 131,260 131,260

Income tax liabilities - 26,302 26,302

Deferred tax liabilities - 24,829 24,829

Total liabilities 1,142,450 217,104 1,359,554

Surplus 294,339 3,684,548 3,978,887
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39 CHAIRMAN AND DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Fees  4,950 580

Emoluments 47,573 25,284

  52,523 25,864

Chairman 6,712 560

Others 45,811 25,304

  52,523 25,864

39a The emoluments (excluding pension contributions) of the highest 
paid director amounted to: 25,762 6,372

39b The number of directors excluding the chairman whose emoluments were within the following range were:

NGN  Number Number

300,001  - 400,000 - -

1,600,000  - 1,700,000 - 3

2,170,000 and above  7 6

      7 9

40 EMPLOYEE

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  Number  Number

Average number of persons employed during the year was as follows:

Principal Manager-Managing director 4 1

Assistant Manager-Senior Manager 20 7

Below Assistant Manager 39 22

Total  63 30

  N’000  N’000

Total staff cost (N’000) 460,355 404,467
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40b The number of employees on receipt of emoluments (excluding allowances and pensions) within the following ranges were:

NGN  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  Number Number

10,001  -  70,000 28 10

80,001  -  90,000 8 8

90,000  -  100,000 8 8

100,001  -  Above 19 4

      63 30

40c Pension and gratuity

  N’000  N’000

Amount charged to profit or loss account are:

Pension 20,009 16,703

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The scheme is fully funded and is managed by licensed Pension Fund 
Administrators. Membership of the scheme is automatic in line with the Pension Reform Act of 2004. The Company’s and the employees’ 
contributions are at the rate of 16.5% and 8.5% respectively of basic salary, transport and entertainment allowances. Employee contributions 
to the scheme are funded through payroll deductions while the Company’s contribution is charged to employee benefit expense in the 
profit and loss account. Once contributions are made, the Company has no legal or constructive obligation to make further contributions 
to the fund even when the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the 
current and prior periods.

41 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no events after the reporting period which could have a material effect on the financial position of the Company as at 31 
December 2016 or the profit for the year ended.

42 PENALTIES PAID

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

a. Violation of guideline for Oil and Gas Insurance - 250

43 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no contingent liabilities at the year end.
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44 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company has no capital commitments as at the reporting date.

45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were related party transactions between FBN General Insurance and FBN Insurance Limited which amounted to N145, 335,445.27 
in respect of shared service cost. The shared services relates to allocation of such cost of office premises, facilities, and human 
resources. All the costs are duly settled.

46 GUARANTEES

The Company did not charge any of its assets to secure liabilities of third parties (2015: Nil).

47 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

The Directors are of the opinion that all known liabilities and commitments, which are relevant in assessing the Company’s state of 
affairs have been taken into consideration in the preparation of these financial statements.

48 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in line with the presentation in the current year for a more meaningful comparison 
in the profit or loss under other comprehensive income.

49 APPROVAL OF THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Audited Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 February, 2017.
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  Motor Marine Bond Engineering Fire Gen. Accident Aviation Oil and Gas Total
  N’000  N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

Gross premium 462,019 168,613 20,482 150,187 461,702 391,049 - 539,222 2,193,274

Unexpired risk C/F 186,105 51,049 8,845 59,933 168,783 75,257 - 200,664 750,636

Unexpired risk B/F 165,654 13,072 2,465 46,332 86,113 53,904 16 147,475 515,031

(Increase)/decrease in 

unearned premium (20,451) (37,977) (6,380) (13,601) (82,670) (21,353) 16 (53,189) (235,605)

Gross premium earned 441,568 130,636 14,102 136,586 379,032 369,696 16 486,033 1,957,669

Reinsurance cost (36,278) (77,417) (6,211) (93,110) (199,014) (146,832) - (300,373) (859,235)

Net premium earned 405,290 53,219 7,891 43,476 180,018 222,864 16 185,660 1,098,434

Commission earned 2,177 11,566 1,434 18,704 41,813 27,123 - 13,160 115,977

Total income 407,467 64,785 9,325 62,180 221,831 249,987 16 198,820 1,214,411

Total claims paid 179,689 6,405 - 141,575 232,820 109,511 2,669 7,913 680,582

Outstanding claims C/F 83,612 30,209 958 27,685 101,986 240,857 12,527 365,848 863,682

Outstanding claims B/F 73,991 17,656 253 17,005 215,225 190,315 18,095 94,879 627,419

Increase/(decrease) in 

outstanding claims 9,621 12,553 705 10,680 (113,239) 50,542 (5,568) 270,969 236,263

Net claims paid 189,310 18,958 705 152,255 119,581 160,053 (2,899) 278,882 916,845

Claims recovery (78,940) (24,704) - (140,270) (76,436) (116,702) - (209,826) (646,878)

Net claims incurred 110,370 (5,746) 705 11,985 43,145 43,351 (2,899) 69,056 269,967

Acquisition expenses (49,189) (24,885) (1,376) (43,089) (72,207) (61,140) - (86,457) (338,343)

Maintenance cost (9,065) (3,308) (401) (2,947) (9,059) (7,672) - (10,580) (43,032)

Underwriting profit 238,843 42,338 6,843 4,159 97,420 137,824 2,915 32,727 563,069

50. DETAILED REVENUE ACCOUNT

51 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets, reinsurance assets and insurance liabilities. The key financial risk 
is that the proceeds from its financial assets are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance contracts and other 
liabilities. The most important components of financial risks are credit risk, currency risk, market risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk.

These risks are as a result of open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of these are exposed to general and 
specific market fluctuations/movements. The risks that the Company primarily faces due to the nature of its investment and liabilities 
are interest rate risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk.

51.1 Financial risks management strategy and policy

The Company manages these positions through its Finance and General Purpose committee who from time to time evaluate financial 
assets with a view to achieving long-term investment returns in excess of its obligation under insurance and investment contracts. The 
principal technique of the committee is to seek the investments that bring maximum returns to cover the Company’s liabilities, as well 
as seeking to maximise the return on shareholders’ and policyholders’ funds.
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51.2 Capital management policy

The Company has a shareholders fund of N4.1b which is above the statutory capital of N3b required for a non-life insurance company.

The Company has as at 31 December 2016 complied with Section 24 of the Insurance Act, 2003. This is to say that the Company 
has in respect of its non-life business maintained a margin of solvency of N3.79b as defined under Section 24 (1), (2).
 
Minimum Capital requirement

During the year, the Company has consistently exceeded the minimum capital requirement  

The table below show solvency margin computation for the Company as at 31 December 2016.

The Solvency Margin for FBN General Insurance as at 31 December 2016 is as follows:

  N’000 N’000

Admissible assets  

Cash and cash equivalent 344,268 

Held-to-maturity - 

Fair value through profit or loss 17,107 

Available-for-sales 2,483,025 

Loans and receivable – assets 358,837 

Trade receivable 21,210 

Reinsurance assets 818,580 

Deferred acquisition cost 132,297 

Other receivable and prepayment 4,005 

Investment property 105,000 

Property, plant and equipment (land and building) 995,128 

Property, plant and equipment (others) 124,997 

Statutory deposit 300,000 

Total admissible assets (a)  5,704,454

Insurance contract liabilities 1,614,318 

Provision and other trade payables 259,727 

Provision for current tax 31,278 

Total admissible liabilities (b)  1,905,323

  

SOLVENCY MARGIN (a-b)  3,799,131

Subject to Higher of:  

15% of net premium income 164,765 

Or  

Minimum capital requirement 3,000,000 3,000,000

Gross solvency ratio  127%

Net solvency ratio  27%

During the year the solvency margin was 127 %( 2015: 130%).
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51.2 Capital management policy (cont’d)

Capital is actively managed with a focus on capital efficiency and effective risk management. The capital objectives are to ensure that 
the Company is properly capitalised and funded at all times, having regard to its regulatory needs, prudent management and the needs 
of all stakeholders.
 
Precisely, the Company has adopted the following capital management policies:

(i) Maintenance, as a minimum, of capital sufficient to meet the statutory requirement.

(ii) An Economic Capital at Risk (ECaR) approach is also used by the Management and the Board to ensure that obligations to 
policyholders can be met in adverse circumstances.

(iii) Maintenance of an appropriate level of liquidity at all times. The Company further ensures that it can meet its expected capital 
and financing needs at all times, having regard to business plans to guarantee its going concern status, forecast and any 
strategic initiatives.

Sensitivities

The Company has both qualitative and quantitative risk management procedures to monitor the key risks and sensitivities of the 
business. This is achieved through scenario analysis and risk assessments. From an understanding of the principal risks, appropriate risk 
limits and control are defined. The Enterprise Risk Management committee plays a major role here.
 
The risk types affecting the surplus capital of the Company are market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, liability risk, business risk and 
operational risk. 

The table below shows the sensitivity of the Company’s capital to changes in key assumptions:

At 31 December 2016  N’000

Shareholders fund  4,104,659
Increase Company’s liabilities by 5%  (98,640)
Decrease equity investment by 5%  (20,838)
Decrease investment portfolio excluding equity investment by 5%  (122,110)
Total new capital in the effect of shock  3,863,071

51.3 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty of a financial instrument does not settle a liability and thus expose FBN General Insurance 
Limited to a loss.

The Company does not use reinsurance to manage significant credit risk. The Company is exposed to credit risk through its investment 
holdings backing the policyholder liabilities and in shareholders’ funds..

Credit risk is managed by placing a limit on exposure to a single counterparty, or groups of counterparties, and to industry segments, 
(i.e. limits are set for investments and cash deposits). Credit risk is monitored with reference to the established credit rating agencies 
(where available) with limits placed on exposure to below investment grade holdings:
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51.3 Credit risk (cont’d)

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  N’000  N’000

Overall credit risk

Reinsurance contracts 510,504 349,650

Loans and advances - -

Trade receivables 21,210 30,188

Securities investment - -

Short-term funds treated as investment 188,858 115,503

Treasury bills 2,083,373 1,725,067

Cash and bank 155,410 177,749

Bonds - 215,023

  2,959,355 2,613,180

The table below analyses end of the year values of the above exposures:

  N’000 N’000
  Fair value as at Fair value as at
  2016 2015

Reinsurance contracts 510,504 349,650

Loans and advances - -

Trade receivables 21,210 30,188

Securities investment - -

Short-term funds treated as investment 196,273 115,503

Treasury bills 2,083,374 1,725,067

Cash and bank 155,410 177,749

Bonds - 215,023

  2,966,771 2,613,180

For credit risk purpose, the trade debtors are grouped into three categories:  
Group A – the maximum trade credits allowed per participant under this group is N10m
Group B – the maximum trade credits allowed per participant under this group is N7m.
Group C – the maximum trade credits allowed per participant under this group is N5m.

Past experience is used in grouping the debtors since most of the clients are not rated.

The profit before tax of the Company will be reduced by N29m if the overall credit is impaired by 10%.
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51.4 Market risk

Market risk is the potential impact of unfavorable changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates, prices and market volatilities. 
Market risk arises from changes in the fair value of investments. Market risks are managed by engaging in fixed interest placements 
with a duration closely corresponding to those liabilities.
 
Guidelines are set for asset allocation and portfolio limit structure; to ensure that assets back policyholders’ liabilities and those assets 
are held to deliver income and gains for policyholders.
 
51.5 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates.

Due to FBN General Insurance extremely low willingness to accept currency risks, only minimal currency risks are accepted in all parts 
of the business. Generally, FBN General Insurance has a low currency risk exposure on its domiciliary accounts; this is hedged by short-
term placements/investment in the same currency or local currency.

The currency risk has been calculated as the currency position per currency on the basis of principal amounts. Interest and future value 
adjustments of the currency are not in-cluded in the calculation.

The table below summarises the Company’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk:

      Total
31 Dec 2016 N’000  USD EURO GBP N’000

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 280,768 56,710 6,790 - 344,268
Financial assets 2,500,132 358,837 - - 2,858,969
Trade receivables 21,210 - - - 21,210
Reinsurance assets 608,753 209,827 - - 818,580
Deferred acquisition cost 95,567 36,730 - - 132,297
Other receivables and prepayments 295,220 - - - 295,220
Investments property 105,000 - - - 105,000
Property, plant and equipment     1,120,125 - - - 1,120,125
Intangible assets 67,235 - - - 67,235
Statutory deposit 300,000 - - - 300,000
  5,394,010 662,104 6,790 - 6,062,904

Liabilities
Insurance contracts liabilities 1,047,807 566,511 - - 1,614,318
Trade payables 46,465 - - - 46,465
Provision and other payables  213,262 - - - 213,262
Current income tax 31,278 - - - 31,278
Deferred tax liabilities 52,922 - - - 52,922
  1,391,734 566,511 - - 1,958,245
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      Total
31 Dec 2015 N’000  USD EURO GBP N’000

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 148,255 140,467 4,530 - 293,252

Financial assets 2,493,191 - - - 2,493,191

Trade receivables 30,188 - - - 30,188

Reinsurance assets 519,775 104,484 - - 624,259

Deferred acquisition cost 59,079 26,719 - - 85,798

Other receivables and prepayments 114,010 - - - 114,010

Investments property 320,225 - - - 320,225

Property, plant and equipment     1,077,518 - - - 1,077,518

Intangible assets - - - - -

Statutory deposit 300,000 - - - 300,000

  5,062,241 271,670 4,530 - 5,338,441

Liabilities
Insurance contracts liabilities 881,986 260,464 - - 1,142,450

Trade payables 34,712 - - - 34,712

Provision and other payables  131,261 - - - 131,261

Current income tax 26,302 - - - 26,302

Deferred tax liabilities 24,829 - - - 24,829

  1,099,090 260,464 - - 1,359,554

The Company has no significant concentration of currency risk.

  Changes in variables Impact on PBT  Impact on PBT

   31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
   N’000 N’000

Sensitivities
Currency

USD  3% 1,701 4,214

EURO 3% 204 136

USD  3% (1,701) (4,214)

EURO 3% (204) (136)

51.5 Currency risk (cont’d)
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51.6 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that interest rates on short-term placements will fluctuate and this will unfavorably affect FBN General 
Insurance earnings and the value of its assets, liabilities and capital. Fixed interest rate instruments expose the Company to fair value 
interest risk though FBN General Insurance Limited has no significant concentration of interest rate risk.

The Company’s interest rate risk policy requires it to manage interest rate risk by maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and variable 
rate instruments. Interest on fixed interest rate instruments is priced at inception of the financial instrument and is fixed until maturity.

The effect of the change in interest rates by 3% (increase) would result in a net increase in profit by N9.1m in 2016 and would reduce 
profit by same amount if it reduces by same percentage.
 
51.7 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that cash may not be available to pay obligations when due at a reasonable cost.

The executive management of the Company is responsible for the effective management of liquidity risk by putting the appropriate 
structure and processes in place. The risk committee of the Board is responsible for reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness thereof.

Guidelines are set for asset allocations, portfolio limit structures and maturity profiles of assets, in order to ensure sufficient funding 
are available to meet insurance and investment contracts obligations.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company financial assets and financial liabilities.

   3-12 1-5 Over 5 
31 Dec 2016 <3 months  months years years Total

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalent 188,858 - - - 188,858
Financial assets through profit/loss - 17,107 - - 17,107
Available-for-sale:

Treasury bills within 90days 498,233 - - - 498,233
Treasury bills above 90days - 1,585,140  - 1,585,140
Unquoted stocks - - 399,652 - 399,652
Loans and receivables - 358,837 - - 358,837
  687,091 1,961,084 399,652 - 3,047,827

Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities  94,881 1,440,973 78,464 - 1,614,318
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The table below analyses assets and liabilities into current and non-current categories. It summarises the expected utilisation or 
settlement of assets and liabilities; the intention with regard to settlement period at the reporting date:  

  Current Non-Current Total
31 Dec 2016 N’000 N’000 N’000

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 344,268 - 344,268
Financial assets 2,492,621 366,348 2,858,969
Trade receivables 21,210 - 21,210
Reinsurance assets 800,561 18,019 818,580
Deferred acquisition cost 132,297 - 132,297
Other receivables and prepayments 295,220 - 295,220
Investments property - 105,000 105,000
Intangible assets - 67,235 67,235
Property, plant and equipment - 1,120,125 1,120,125
Statutory deposit - 300,000 300,000
  4,086,177 1,976,727 6,062,904
Liabilities
Insurance contracts liabilities 1,516,801 97,517 1,614,318
Trade payables 46,465 - 46,465
Provision and other payables 213,262 - 213,262
Current income tax 31,278 - 31,278
Deferred tax liabilities - 52,922 52,922 

  1,807,806 150,439 1,958,245

   3-12 1-5 Over 5 
31 Dec 2015 <3 months  months years years Total

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalent 115,503 - - - 115,503

Financial assets through profit/loss - 39,366 - - 39,366

Treasury bills within 90 days - - - - -

Treasury bills above 90 days - 1,725,068 - - 1,725,068

FGN bonds - 215,023 - - 215,023

Available-for-sale - - 513,734 - 513,734

  115,503 1,979,457 513,734 - 2,608,964

Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities  130,938 926,332 85,180 - 1,142,450

51.7 Liquidity risk (cont’d)
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  Current Non-Current Total
31 Dec 2015 N’000 N’000 N’000

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 293,252 - 293,252

Financial assets 1,979,457 513,734 2,493,191

Trade receivables 30,188 - 30,188

Reinsurance assets 490,795 133,464 624,259

Deferred acquisition cost 85,798 - 85,798

Other receivables and prepayments 114,010 - 114,010

Investments property - 320,225 320,225

Intangible assets - - -

Property, plant and equipment - 1,077,518 1,077,518

Statutory deposit - 300,000 300,000

  2,993,500 2,344,941 5,338,441

Liabilities
Insurance contracts liabilities 862,744 279,706 1,142,450

Trade payables 34,712 - 34,712

Provision and other payables 131,262 - 131,262

Current income tax 26,302 - 26,302

Deferred tax liabilities - 24,829 24,829

  1,055,020 304,535 1,359,555

51.7 Liquidity risk (cont’d)
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51.7 Liquidity risk (cont’d)

As at 31 December 2016, investments classified as level 1 comprise approximately 87% of financial assets measured at fair value on 
a recurring basis. Fair value measurements classified as level 1 include exchange-traded prices of fixed maturities and equity securities.

As at 31 December 2016, investments classified as level 3 comprise approximately 13% of financial assets measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis. They primarily include unquoted securities. As market quotes are not readily available or accessible for these securities, 
their fair value measures are determined utilising relevant information generated by market transactions involving comparable securities. 
Fair values are equally determined by using valuation techniques that refer as far as possible to observable market data.

Observable inputs generally used to measure the fair value of securities classified as level 3 include benchmark yields, reported 
secondary trades, broker-dealer quotes, benchmark securities, bids offers and reference data. Additional observable inputs are used 
when available, and as may be appropriate.

  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 Dec 2016 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:   

Equity securities           17,107 - - 17,107
Held for trading - - - -
Available-for-sale financial assets  2,083,374 - 399,651 2,483,025
Held-to-maturity - - - -
Loans and receivables 358,837   358,837
  2,459,318 - 399,651 2,858,969

  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 Dec 2015 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Equity securities           39,366 - - 39,366

Held for trading 1,940,091 - - 1,940,091

Available-for-sale financial assets  - - 513,734 513,734

Held-to-maturity - - - -

  1,979,457 - 513,734 2,493,191
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52 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

FBN Insurance Limited holds 99.999% of equity shares in FBN General Insurance Limited.

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
Related party transactions  N’000 N’000

FBN Insurance Limited Intercompany receivable 10,216 -

There were related party transactions between FBN General Insurance Limited and FBN Insurance Limited which amounted to 
N145,335,445.27 in respect of shared service.

53 INSURANCE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company assumes insurance risk by issuing insurance policies, under which the Company agrees to compensate the policyholder 
if a specified uncertain future event affecting the policyholder occurs.

For accounting purposes, insurance risk is defined as risk other than financial risk. Contract issued by the Company may include both 
insurance and financial risk; contracts with significant insurance risk.

The principal risk FBN General Insurance faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or the timing 
thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual claims paid and subsequent 
occurrence of long–term claims. Therefore, the objective of FBN General Insurance is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available 
to cover these liabilities.

The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical areas. The variability 
of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance 
arrangements.

The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Reinsurance ceded is placed on both a proportional 
and non–proportional basis. The majority of proportional reinsurance is surplus reinsurance which is taken out to reduce the overall 
exposure of the Company to certain classes of business. Non–proportional reinsurance is primarily excess–of–loss reinsurance designed 
to mitigate the Company’s net exposure to catastrophe losses. Retention limits for the excess–of–loss reinsurance vary by product line.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in accordance 
with the reinsurance contracts. Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its 
policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to ceded insurance, to the extent that if any reinsurer is unable to meet 
its obligations assumed under such reinsurance agreements, this is diversified such that it is neither dependent on a single reinsurer 
nor are the operations of the Company substantially dependent upon any single reinsurance contract. 
 
FBN General Insurance principally issues the following types of general insurance contracts: Motor, Marine, Bond, Engineering, Fire, 
General Accident, Aviation, and Oil and gas. All the risks usually cover twelve months except Bond, Engineering and Marine which can 
be less or more than 12 months 
 
For general insurance contracts, the most significant risks arise from climate changes, natural disasters, flood, accidents, terrorist 
activities (Boko Haram), bank robberies and bank frauds. These risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk 
insured by the Company, type of risk insured and by industry.
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The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical areas. The 
variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that 
risks are diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits. This is largely achieved through diversification across industry 
sectors and geography.

Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and on-going claims, regular detailed review of claims handling procedures 
and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are part of the policies and procedures put in place to reduce the risk exposure 
of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly attending to claims, in order to reduce its 
exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the business.

FBN General Insurance has also limited its exposure by the use of reinsurance arrangements in order to limit exposure to catastrophic 
events.

The purpose of these underwriting and reinsurance strategies is to limit exposure to catastrophes based on the Company’s risk appetite 
as decided by Management. The Board has the risk appetite in place.

53.1 Terms and conditions of insurance contracts

The terms and conditions on insurance contracts determine the level of insurance risk accepted by the Company. The table below 
outlines the general form of terms and conditions that apply to contracts sold in each category of business, and the nature of the risk 
incurred:

      Policyholder   Policyholder
Category Main risks   guarantees   participation

Motor  Accident/unforeseeable loss  Indemnity    Premium (to seal the contract)

Accident Accident/unforeseeable loss/benefit  Indemnity/benefit for estate  Premium (to seal the contract)

Marine  Accident/unforeseeable loss  Indemnity    Premium (to seal the contract)

Fire  Accident/unforeseeable loss  Indemnity    Premium (to seal the contract)

Special Risks Accident/unforeseeable loss  Indemnity/guarantee for 

      Unforeseen default    Premium (to seal the contract)

53 Insurance risk management (cont’d)
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53.2 Insurance risks’ management

The table below summarises the variety of insurance risks to which the Company is exposed, and the method by which it seeks to mitigate 
the risks:

RISK TYPE RISK MANAGEMENTNATURE

Motor

Accident

Marine

Fire

Special risks

Accidental damage/loss to 
Insured property

Accident/loss/professional 
negligence

Accident/unforeseeable loss

Damage/loss as a result of 
unforeseen fire incident or 
storm

Accidental damage or loss

Pre-loss Survey on the property is done, past experience is 
considered, the risk is spread and the underwriters are properly 
trained.

Pre-loss Survey on the property is done, past experience is 
considered, rates are reviewed, the risk is spread and the 
underwriters are properly trained.

Pre-loss Survey on the property is done, past experience is 
considered, rates are reviewed, the risk is spread and the 
underwriters are properly trained.

Professional input to reduce the risk, reinsurance arrangement, past 
experience is considered, rates are reviewed, the risk is spread and 
the underwriters are properly trained.

Reinsurance package to spread the risks e.g. excess of loss, treaty 
arrangement, local and overseas training for underwriters.
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53.2 Insurance risks’ management (cont’d)

The probability of accident occurrence is high in motor and accident though the quantum is normally low while the probability of accident in 
special risk is very low but the quantum is potentially very high.

Changes in rates used to value insurance contracts would result in increase/decrease to the insurance contract liabilities recorded, with the 
corresponding decreases or increases to profit. With Fire and Special Risk business, rate review will have effect on the profit and loss and 
shareholders fund. The estimate as at 31 December 2016 is analysed below:

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015 
  Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
 Change% in liabilities  in liabilities
Sensitivities  N’000 N’000

Motor (10%) (46,202) (23,965)

Accident 10% 39,105 24,422

Marine 10% 16,861 3,072

Fire  10% 46,170 30,134

Special Risk 10% 53,922 26,046

The changes in insurance contract liabilities shown are calculated using the specified increase or decrease to the rates, with no change in 
charges paid by policyholders.

The effect of the change in rates would result in a net increase in profit to N110m in 2016 and N60m in 2015.

54 ACTUARY’S REPORT
        
Methodology

Future claim amounts

Inflation

Claims paid amounts have not been adjusted for inflation. Nigeria’s inflation has been very volatile over the last few years, and AFIC would 
recommend that inflation adjusted numbers are looked at in future. Although the Basic Chain Ladder method does allow implicitly for inflation, 
if the inflation has been very volatile over the period of projection, this implicit assumption is not valid and inflation should be allowed for 
explicitly.

Reserving methods used

Depending on the volume of data in the reserving classes specified in section 6, the appropriate methodologies were used. Three methods 
were used for the projection of claims. The Basic Chain Ladder Method (BCL), a loss ratio method adjusted for assumed experience to date 
and in more recent years and where the claim development seems different than in the past a Bornheutter – Ferguson Method was used 
based on loss ratios that have been experienced in past accident years.

Claims data was grouped into triangles by accident year or quarter and payment year or quarter. The choice between quarters or years was 
based on the volume of data in each segment. AFIC used payment development patterns instead of the reporting years’ patterns to allow for 
the longer tail development that would be seen in reporting and payment delays as well as to allow for the movement of partial payments 
in the data.
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There was insufficient data to sub-divide claims between large and small claims. Sub–dividing the data would reduce the volume of the 
data in the triangles and compromise the credibility. Extreme large claims however were removed from the triangulations to avoid distorting 
development patterns.

Basic Chain Ladder Method (BCL)

Development factors were calculated using the last 3, 4 and 5 years of data by accident year or quarter. Ultimate development factors are 
calculated for each of the permutations. Development patterns are selected taking into account stability of the loss ratios between accident 
periods for a development period, as well as considering whether there seems to be a change in development, for example a quickening in 
the rate that claims are paid, ultimate development factors are applied to the paid data per accident year or quarter and an ultimate claim 
amount is calculated. The future claims (the ultimate claim amount less paid claims to date) are allocated to future payment periods in line 
with the development patterns calculated above. The outstanding claims reported to date are then subtracted from the total future claims to 
give the resulting IBNR figure per accident year or quarter.

For cases where there were extreme large losses that had been reported but not paid, and therefore would not have influenced the 
development patterns, the total case reserve was excluded from the calculation of the IBNR.

 i.e. IBNR  =  Ultimate Claim Amount (excluding extreme large losses)

    minus Paid Claims to date
    minus Claims Outstanding (excluding extreme large losses)

Assumptions underlying the BCL

The Basic Chain Ladder Method assumes that past experience is indicative of future experience i.e. that claims reported to date will continue 
to develop in a similar manner in the future.

An implicit assumption is that, for an immature accident year, the claims observed thus far tell you something about the claims yet to be 
observed.

A further assumption is that it assumes consistent claim processing, a stable mix of types of claims, stable inflation and stable policy limits. 

If any of these assumptions are invalidated, the results of the reserving exercise may prove to be inaccurate.

Loss ratio method

For four of the classes namely Oil and Gas, Marine Hull, Bond and Aviation, there was very limited data. A BCL method was therefore 
inappropriate. We allowed for expected experience to date and the assumed average Ultimate Loss ratios in carrying out the calculation.

Average delay durations were calculated from the data provided. In the absence of any data, various options were provided. Detailed results 
can be found under the result section.

The IBNR is then calculated as:

 Expected % of claims to still arise in future based on average delay

 x average ultimate loss ratio assumed

 x earned premium for the current year

54 Actuary’s report (cont’d)
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Assumptions underlying the loss ratio method

We assumed that the average delay in reporting of claims will continue into the future. If it is expected that these delay assumptions no longer 
hold, an adjustment needs to be made to allow for this change in reporting. If the delay period in reporting is expected to have increased from 
previous years, the results shown in this report will be understated.

Additionally, an estimate of the average ultimate loss ratio needed to be assumed. We based our estimated average loss ratio on claims 
experience to date for accident years 2015 and 2016. In future it is suggested that a further history of written premiums is given so that we 
can base the initial estimates of the loss ratio for the current accident year based on more accident years’ experience to date.

Additionally AFIC would advise FBN Insurances underwriters to capture what the ultimate loss ratio for a specific accident year is expected 
to be per class of business. 

AFIC however does feel comfortable that the initial estimate assumptions are reasonable if no business or processes have changed over the 
last 3 accident years. AFIC did conduct a reasonability check on the loss ratios by comparing the loss ratios to industry figures, however, if 
the loss ratios average is not indicative of future experience the IBNR calculated could be under/overestimated.

The loss ratios used and delays assumed for these classes are shown in the results section.

Unearned Premium Reserve and Deferred Acquisition Cost

Unearned Premium Reserve (UPR)

Unearned premium provision was calculated using a time – apportionment basis, in particular, the 365ths method.

In the calculation of the UPR, it was assumed that both the start and end date were included in the coverage period, i.e. if the policy’s start 
and end date are the 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 respectively, then the policy will cover any claim occurring on the 1 January 2016 
and 31 December 2016, as well as any dates in between. For this example, the policy term will be 366 days. This differs from the approach 
used by FBN General Insurance Limited where it is assumed that a policy with a start date of 1 January 2016 only has a coverage period that 
starts on 2 January 2016 or alternatively covers the 1 January 2016 and only runs to the 30 December 2016.

Assumptions underlying the loss ratio method

We assumed that the average delay in reporting of claims will continue into the future. If it is expected that these delay assumptions no longer 
hold, an adjustment needs to be made to allow for this change in reporting. If the delay period in reporting is expected to have increased from 
previous years, the results shown in this report will be understated.

Additionally, an estimate of the average ultimate loss ratio needed to be assumed. We based our estimated average loss ratio on claims 
experience to date for accident years 2015 and 2016. In future it is suggested that a further history of written premiums is given so that we 
can base the initial estimates of the loss ratio for the current accident year based on more accident years’ experience to date.

Additionally AFIC would advise FBN Insurances underwriters to capture what the ultimate loss ratio for a specific accident year is expected 
to be per class of business. 

AFIC however does feel comfortable that the initial estimate assumptions are reasonable if no business or processes have changed over the 
last 3 accident years. AFIC did conduct a reasonability check on the loss ratios by comparing the loss ratios to industry figures, however, if 
the loss ratios average is not indicative of future experience the IBNR calculated could be under/overestimated.

The loss ratios used and delays assumed for these classes are shown in the results section.

Unearned Premium Reserve and Deferred Acquisition Cost

54 Actuary’s report (cont’d)
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54 Actuary’s report (cont’d)

Unearned Premium Reserve (UPR)

Unearned premium provision was calculated using a time – apportionment basis, in particular, the 365ths method.

In the calculation of the UPR, it was assumed that both the start and end date were included in the coverage period, i.e. if the policy’s start 
and end date are the 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 respectively, then the policy will cover any claim occurring on the 1 January 2016 
and 31 December 2016, as well as any dates in between. For this example, the policy term will be 366 days. This differs from the approach 
used by FBN General Insurance Limited where it is assumed that a policy with a start date of 1 January 2016 only has a coverage period that 
starts on 2 January 2016 or alternatively covers the 1 January 2016 and only runs to the 30 December 2016.

Deferred acquisition costs

The same approach was taken as for the calculation of the UPR balance.

IBNR Results:
 Gross IBNR as at  IBNR Gross as at
 31 December 31 December
Class of business 2016 2015

Aviation  991 6,541

Bond  958 253

Engineering  16,833 8,872

Fire  25,883 11,040

General accident  66,869 102,050

Marine cargo  24,262 15,206

Motor  42,361 34,730

Oil and gas  74,157 72,829

Total  252,314 251,521

The net figures are based on the average recovery ratio over the last 3 years per class of business instead of using actual net claims data.

UPR and DAC Results
 2016

 Sum of Unearned Sum of Unearned
Class of business Premium (UPR)  Commission (DAC)

Aviation - -
Bond 8,845 1,538
Engineering 59,933 16,684
Fire  168,783 33,858
General accident  75,257 15,072
Marine cargo  33,589 5,191
Marine hull 17,460 3,494
Motor  186,105 19,730
Oil and gas 200,664 36,730
Total 750,637 132,297
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54 Actuary’s report (cont’d)

 2015

 Sum of Unearned Sum of Unearned
Class of business Premium (UPR)  Commission (DAC)

Aviation  16 4

Bond  2,465 490

Engineering  46,332 9,757

Fire  86,113 17,149

General accident  53,904 10,794

Marine Cargo  5,625 1,156

Marine Hull  7,447 1,514

Motor  165,654 18,219

Oil and Gas  147,475 26,715

Total  515,031 85,798

The calculation of the unearned premium reserves is very dependent on the duration of the policies. Therefore, if there are missing dates and 
the assumptions used are materially different to what is reality, the UPR and DAC figures will not be accurate.

This appendix shows the cumulative triangulations that were used in the reserve report as at December 2016 for the 5 classes where 
triangulation methods were used.

This appendix shows the cumulative triangulations that were used in the reserve report as at 31 December 2016 for the four classes where 
triangulation methods were used, i.e. for Engineering, Fire, General Accident and Motor. The triangulations including and excluding exceptionally 
large losses are shown.

All the triangulations contain only claims paid data as described in the attaching report.
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Engineering

Development Year
Accident
Year 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

2005 - - 1,101,504 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827

2006 - - 48,378 213,205 213,205 213,205 213,205 213,205 213,205 213,205 213,205 

2007 - - - - - - - - - -  

2008 1,244,930 1,367,388 2,314,651 2,314,651 2,314,651 2,314,651 2,314,651 2,314,651 2,314,651   

2009 1,492,101 2,825,355 2,977,939 3,139,221 5,389,221 5,389,221 5,389,221 5,389,221    

2010 184,533 1,864,955 19,090,974 19,090,974 19,090,974 19,605,453 19,656,453     

2011 3,484,739 14,194,029 15,151,241 15,181,684 16,662,793 17,296,397      

2012 1,278,626 2,479,314 2,484,903 3,054,465 3,282,713       

2013 3,476,451 3,660,839 3,717,020 4,149,895        

2014 2,471,897 3,250,849 3,954,098         

2015 24,205,330 25,433,395          

2016 909,906           

Fire 

Development Year
Accident
Year 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

2005 - 11,697,059 11,697,059 11,781,729 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323

2006 4,694,662 4,694,662 4,732,429 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 

2007 - 160,763 299,611 299,611 299,611 299,611 299,611 299,611 299,611 299,611  

2008 2,243,994 4,468,176 4,609,979 4,729,662 4,729,662 4,729,662 4,729,662 4,729,662 4,729,662   

2009 615,535 13,062,008 13,062,008 13,062,008 13,062,008 13,062,008 13,062,008 13,062,008    

2010 3,936,642 4,867,785 4,867,785 5,787,010 5,787,010 5,787,010 5,787,010     

2011 13,854,830 52,294,913 54,925,981 54,925,981 54,930,236 54,930,236      

2012 3,002,662 22,107,268 49,624,404 50,702,354 52,446,480       

2013 4,982,694 10,248,372 17,167,823 17,167,823        

2014 2,204,263 23,480,696 27,006,479         

2015 21,763,329 34,507,076

2016 27,598,249           

Claims paid triangulations as at 31 December 2016 - excluding large losses
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General Accident

Development Year
Accident
Year 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

2005 86,916      15,112,209      15,112,209       15,453,787      16,502,203     16,502,203     16,510,234     16,510,234   16,510,234   16,510,234    16,510,234  16,510,234

2006 12,220,024      12,220,024      14,676,014       16,404,165      17,960,868     17,960,868     17,960,868     18,041,558   18,248,684   18,248,684    18,248,684    

2007 - 2,829,708 3,768,433 3,768,433  5,996,023 5,996,023 6,505,233 6,524,968 6,534,741 6,615,401       

2008 10,879,759 40,731,595 43,296,984 47,181,657      49,981,061     50,070,393     50,159,714     50,265,585   50,308,594          

2009 9,456,179      52,301,352      57,183,040 60,632,662      61,612,051     61,918,689     62,401,233     62,401,233             

2010 68,851,633     140,793,913    149,157,164 161,440,067    168,142,302    168,420,399    168,789,122                

2011 29,970,159     120,135,842    137,569,016 138,821,262    139,807,767    142,270,567                   

2012 49,357,058     105,310,439    154,299,836 162,504,461  163,424,755                      

2013 38,240,186      70,014,316    103,617,510 104,333,018                         

2014 42,755,338      84,253,790      86,879,649                            

2015 33,977,507     102,342,050                               

2016 33,929,655                                  

Motor

Development Year
Accident
Year 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

2005 - 12,493,259 12,493,259 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 

2006      7,183,547        7,183,547       8,091,816         8,162,179        8,162,179       8,162,179       8,162,179       8,162,179 8,162,179 8,162,179 8,162,179    

2007                 -        13,490,131      13,513,456       13,513,456      13,513,456     13,513,456     13,513,456     13,513,456   13,513,456   13,513,456       

2008    28,697,353      53,971,325      54,682,249       54,682,249      54,712,249     55,331,832     55,331,832     55,331,832   55,331,832          

2009    46,818,708      87,336,233      88,028,286       88,350,910      88,421,660     89,177,660     89,177,660     89,177,660             

2010    74,692,635     110,251,301    111,944,711      119,123,375    119,144,513    119,144,513    119,166,933                

2011    63,119,744     121,145,189    128,786,628      130,366,614    130,904,793    133,208,473                   

2012    48,825,250      89,302,481      96,864,771       99,006,135    100,506,497                      

2013    71,227,426     108,973,778    112,018,279      112,434,303                         

2014    66,632,382     112,652,283    118,946,881                            

2015  117,394,839     149,651,434                               

2016  137,109,560                                  
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Engineering

Development Year
Accident
Year 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

2005 - - 1,101,504 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827

2006 - - 48,378 213,205 213,205 213,205 213,205 213,205 213,205 213,205 213,205 

2007 - - - - - - - - - -  

2008 1,244,930 1,367,388 2,314,651 2,314,651 2,314,651 2,314,651 2,314,651 2,314,651 2,314,651   

2009 1,492,101 2,825,355 2,977,939 3,139,221 5,389,221 5,389,221 5,389,221 5,389,221    

2010 184,533 1,864,955 19,090,974 19,090,974 19,090,974 19,605,453 19,656,453     

2011 3,484,739 14,194,029 15,151,241 15,181,684 16,662,793 17,296,397      

2012 1,278,626 2,479,314 2,484,903 3,054,465 3,282,713       

2013 3,476,451 3,660,839 3,717,020 4,149,895        

2014 2,471,897 3,250,849 3,954,098         

2015 24,205,330 162,821,109          

2016        909,906                                  

Fire 

Development Year
Accident
Year 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

2005 - 11,697,059 11,697,059 11,781,729 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323

2006 4,694,662 4,694,662 4,732,429 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 

2007 - 160,763 299,611 299,611 299,611 299,611 299,611 299,611 299,611 299,611  

2008 2,243,994 4,468,176 4,609,979 4,729,662 4,729,662 4,729,662 4,729,662 4,729,662 4,729,662   

2009 615,535 13,062,008 13,062,008 13,062,008 13,062,008 13,062,008 13,062,008 13,062,008    

2010 3,936,642 4,867,785 4,867,785 5,787,010 5,787,010 5,787,010 5,787,010     

2011 13,854,830 52,294,913 54,925,981 54,925,981 54,930,236 54,930,236      

2012 3,002,662 22,107,268 49,624,404 50,702,354 146,709,944       

2013 4,982,694 10,248,372 17,167,823 17,167,823        

2014 2,204,263 23,480,696 27,006,479         

2015 21,763,329 221,715,198          

2016 27,598,249           

Claims Paid Triangulations as at 31 December 2016 - Including Large Losses
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General Accident

Development Year
Accident
Year 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

2005 86,916 15,112,209 15,112,209 15,453,787 16,502,203 16,502,203 16,510,234 16,510,234 16,510,234 16,510,234 16,510,234 16,510,234

2006 12,220,024 12,220,024 14,676,014 16,404,165 17,960,868 17,960,868 17,960,868 18,041,558 18,248,684 18,248,684 18,248,684 

2007 - 2,829,708 3,768,433 3,768,433 5,996,023 5,996,023 6,505,233 6,524,968 6,534,741 6,615,401  

2008 10,879,759 40,731,595 43,296,984 47,181,657 49,981,061 50,070,393 50,159,714 50,265,585 50,308,594   

2009 9,456,179 52,301,352 57,183,040 60,632,662 61,612,051 61,918,689 62,401,233 62,401,233    

2010 68,851,633 140,793,913 149,157,164 161,440,067 168,142,302 168,420,399 168,789,122     

2011 29,970,159 120,135,842 137,569,016 138,821,262 139,807,767 142,270,567      

2012 49,357,058 105,310,439 154,299,836 162,504,461 163,424,755       

2013 38,240,186 70,014,316 103,617,510 104,333,018        

2014 42,755,338 84,253,790 140,245,907         

2015 33,977,507 102,342,050          

2016 33,929,655

Motor

Development Year
Accident
Year 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

2005 - 12,493,259 12,493,259 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009

2006 7,183,547 7,183,547 8,091,816 8,162,179 8,162,179 8,162,179 8,162,179 8,162,179 8,162,179 8,162,179 8,162,179 

2007 - 13,490,131 13,513,456 13,513,456 13,513,456 13,513,456 13,513,456 13,513,456 13,513,456 13,513,456  

2008 28,697,353 53,971,325 54,682,249 54,682,249 54,712,249 55,331,832 55,331,832 55,331,832 55,331,832   

2009 46,818,708 87,336,233 88,028,286 88,350,910 88,421,660 89,177,660 89,177,660 89,177,660    

2010 74,692,635 110,251,301 111,944,711 119,123,375 119,144,513 119,144,513 119,166,933     

2011 63,119,744 121,145,189 128,786,628 130,366,614 130,904,793 133,208,473      

2012 48,825,250 89,302,481 96,864,771 99,006,135 100,506,497       

2013 71,227,426 108,973,778 112,018,279 112,434,303        

2014 66,632,382 112,652,283 118,946,881         

2015 117,394,839 149,651,434          

2016 137,109,560
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55 OTHER NATIONAL DISCLOSURES

55a Statements of value added

  2016  2015
  N’000  %  N’000 %

Net insurance premium income 1,098,434  1,126,403

Fee and commission income 115,977  115,402

Total underwriting expenses (651,342)  (584,630)

Net investment income 498,003  284,575 

Other services bought (320,063)  (257,374)

Value added 741,009 100 684,376 100

Applied as follows:
In payment of employees:
- Salaries, wages and other benefits 460,355 62 404,467 59

In payment to Government
- Taxation 61,868 8 46,206 7

For future replacement of assets, 
expansion of business and payment
of dividend to shareholders:
- Depreciation and amortisation 85,995 11 45,125 7

- Contingency reserve 65,798 8 54,333 8

- Profit for the year 66,993 9 134,245 20

  741,009 100 684,376 100

Value added represents the additional wealth the Company has been able to create by its own and employees’ efforts. This statement 
shows the allocation of that wealth among employees, providers of capital, as well as government and that retained for future creation 
of more wealth.
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55b  Five year financial summary

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2012
  N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalent 344,268 293,252 313,509 826,348 525,323

Financial assets 2,858,969 2,493,191 1,982,989 961,178 1,011,293

Trade receivables 21,210 30,188 127,362 15,967 185,859

Reinsurance assets 818,580 624,259 523,745 392,568 480,192

Deferred acquisition cost 132,297 85,798 109,457 63,772 63,330

Other receivables and prepayments 295,220 114,010 45,335 19,059 36,844

Investment properties 105,000 320,225 322,000 342,888 330,211

Property, plant and equipment 1,120,125 1,077,518 1,029,041 1,061,877 1,082,753

Intangible assets 67,235 - 4,441 15,543 17,986

Statutory deposits 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000

Total assets 6,062,904 5,338,441 4,757,880 3,999,201 4,033,791

LIABILITIES
Insurance contract liabilities 1,614,318 1,142,450 1,029,726 740,444 683,983

Trade payables 46,465 34,713 10,958 6,519 -

Provision and other payables 213,262 131,260 223,227 14,657 35,509

Income tax liabilities 31,278 26,302 105,756 11,180 16,684

Deferred tax liabilities 52,922 24,829 32,818 34,599 34,599

Total liabilities 1,958,245 1,359,554 1,402,485 807,399 770,775

EQUITY
Paid up share capital 3,751,753 3,751,753 3,251,753 3,251,753 3,251,753

Share premium 410,961 410,961 410,961 410,961 410,961

Contingency reserve 484,894 419,096 364,763 313,647 276,344

Retained earnings (984,014) (1,051,009) (1,185,254) (1,301,692) (1,193,176)

Available-for-sale reserves (76,068) (69,047) (3,962) - -

Asset revaluation surplus 517,133 517,133 517,133 517,133 517,133

Total equity 4,104,659 3,978,887 3,355,395 3,191,802 3,263,015

Total liabilities and equity 6,062,904 5,338,441 4,757,880 3,999,201 4,033,791
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  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2012
  N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

Gross written premium 2,193,274 1,811,112 1,703,833 1,243,465 1,604,975

Gross premium income 1,957,669 1,869,296 1,488,837 1,266,562 1,600,166

Net premium earned 1,098,434 1,126,403 1,099,773 1,040,523 1,433,705

Claims incurred (269,967) (205,271) (191,901) (136,233) (222,673)

Net underwriting expenses (381,375) (379,359) (317,943) (325,593) (368,582)

Underwriting results 563,069 657,175 683,876 633,188 889,113

Investment income 372,981 284,575 116,497 48,872 138,323

Other income 12,022 779 13,919 16,287 12,558

Management expenses (858,996) (707,745) (539,270) (593,523) (501,723)

Other expenses (7,415) - (3,492) (164,856) (290,617)

Profit before tax 194,661 234,784 271,530 (60,032) 247,672

Income tax (61,868) (46,206) (103,975) (11,180) (16,684)

Profit after tax 132,793 188,578 167,555 (71,212) 230,988

Other comprehensive income (7,021) (65,085) (3,962) - 9,375

Total comprehensive income 125,772 123,493 163,593 (71,212) 240,363

INCOME STATEMENTS
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ABBREVIATIONS

AFS Available For Sale

AGM Annual General Meeting

AURR Additional Unexpired Risk Reserve

CAMA Companies and Allied Matters Act

CBN Central Bank of Nigeria

CCP Central Counterparty

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CGU Cash Generating Unit

CIIN Chartered Insurance Institute of Nigeria

CITA Company Income Tax Act

CFO Chief Financial Officer

COO Chief Operating Officer

COSO Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the

 Treadway Commission

CRO Chief Risk Officer

DAC Deferred Acquisition Costs

ECL Expected Credit Loss

EPS Earnings Per Share

ExCo Executive Management Committee

FGN Federal Government of Nigeria

FRC Financial Reporting Council

FVOCI Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

IASB International Accounting Standards Board

IBNR Incurred But Not Reported

ICAN Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria

ICB International Commercial Banks

IFRIC International Financial Reporting Interpretations

 Committee

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

KPI Key Performance Indicator

KRI Key Risk Indicator

KYC Know Your Customer

MD Managing Director

MPR Monetary Policy Rate

N Naira

NAICOM National Insurance Commission

NBA Nigerian Bar Association

NIBOR Nigerian Inter-Bank Offered Rate

OCI Other Comprehensive Income

PAT Profit After Tax

PBT Profit Before Tax

PFA Pension Fund Administrator

SEC Securities and Exchange Commission

SLA Service Level Agreement

UPR Unexpired Premium Reserve
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CONTACT INFORMATION

Head office
298, Ikorodu Road, Lagos.

Tel: +234 1 905 4810,

+234 1 905 4444

Regional offices:
Abuja

1, Zambezi Crescent, Off Aguiyi

Ironsi Street, Maitama - Abuja.

Tel: +234 8023 732 963

Tel: +234 8185 618 083

Akure

3rd Floor, Bank Of Industry (BOI)

Opposite First Bank Of Nigeria Plc,

Alagbaka Estate, Akure, Ondo State

Tel: +234 7015 158 258,

+234 8039 415 778

Enugu

FBN General Insurance

First Bank, Enugu Main

21, Okpara Avenue,

Enugu, Enugu State.

Tel: +234 8022 806 628

Ibadan

FBN General Insurance

2nd Floor, First Bank Building

48, Challenge/Molete Road,

Ibadan, Oyo State.

Tel: +234 8085 227 782

Kano

FBN General Insurance

1 Sani Abacha Way. Kano

Tel: +234 8177 199 537

Port Harcourt

80, Aba Road, Opposite

Government Craft Centre,

Port-Harcourt, Rivers State.

Tel: +234 8023 064 656

Warri

60, Effurun/Sapele Road,

Effurun, Delta State.

Tel: +234 7014 345 819

Website: www.fbninsurance.com

Email: insuranceinfo@fbninsurance.com
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www.fbninsurance.com

FBN General Insurance Limited
Registered address
298, Ikorodu Road, Lagos.
Tel: +234 1 905 4810,
+234 1 905 4444


